under each of the City Deal pillars, and NMDDC officials sit on the Executive Board, relevant
pillar boards, Finance Directors Group and other groups as relevant fo NMDDC's projects.

A Governance Review of the NCCR Programme was carried out by Council's internal
auditors during August 2021, following a number of concemns raised by Members. The review
concluded that the internal auditors did not believe the concerns raised by Members should
impact on the Council progressing the Regeneration Programme.

3. Planning Backlog

The ‘failure to provide robust and fimely planning decisions' is highlighted as a risk within the
Corporate Risk Register. This has been reinforced by the development of the performance
improvement objective to 'improve the processing fimes of planning applications and
enforcement cases by implementing the Planning Service Improvement Programme’ which
was agreed in 2021-22 and has been carried forward fo 2022-23.

Despite the challenges presented by the COVID-19 pandemic, the continued
implementation of the Planning Service Improvement Programme is well underway and has
been led by an independent planning project consultant. The aim of the programme is to
review and refine processes and procedures, support employees to deliver service
improvements and improve the responsiveness of the Development Management Service,
particularly in relation to the fime taken to determine planning applications and to bring
enforcement cases to a satisfactory conclusion.

Between Q1-Q3 2021-22, Newry, Mourne and Down received 1,331 planning applications,
which is the highest across Northern Ireland and exceeds the 1,177 applications received
between Q1-Q3 2020-21. Despite the the high volume of planning applications received, the
Council has made progress in reducing the number planning applications and enforcement
cases currently in the system.

« The number of planning applications in the system for 12 months or less has
decreased from 857 in March 2021 to 825 in December 2021.

« The number of planning applications in the system for 12 months or more has
decreased from 195 in March 2021 to 187 in December 2021.

e The number of enforcement cases in the system for 12 months or more has decreased
from 546 in March 2021 to 486 in December 2021.

Through the Performance Improvement Plan, the Council has agreed and published a suite
of performance measures and targets to reduce the backlog of planning

applications. Progress in achieving the targets set is monitored and reported to the SMI,
SP&R Committee and Audit Committee on a bi-annual basis.

It should be noted that, whilst the Council has not yet achieved the statutory standards, the
fime taken to process planning applications and enforcement cases has improved over the
past three years.

e The time taken to process local planning applications has reduced from 20.6 weeks in
2019-20 to 18.3 weeks between Q1-Q3 2021-22 and is above the current Northern
Ireland average of 16.8 weeks.

« The fime taken to process major planning applications has reduced from 74 weeks in
2019-20 to 49.8 weeks between Q1-Q3 2021-22 and is below the current Northern
Ireland average of 55.9 weeks.
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e The percentage of planning enforcement cases progressed within 39 weeks
improved, from 36.2% in 2019-20 to 46.9% between Q1-Q3 2021-22, and remains well
below the current Northern Ireland average of 70%.

These figures correlate with the findings of the Planning Satisfaction Survey which was carried
out in January 2022. Through the survey, 113 Planning Agents were consulted on the aspects
of the service that are working well and potential areas for improvement. Whilst only 29
Planning Agents responded, which equates to a low response rate of 25%, the findings
indicate that:

e 49% are satisfied with the reception service
o 48% are safisfied with the expertise and knowledge of Planning Officers
« 7% are satisfied with the time taken o process planning applications

The feedback from the survey, combined with the continued implementation of the
performance improvement objective during 2022-23, will deliver service improvements by
addressing the backlog of planning applications in the system, reducing the caseloads of
Planning Officers, improving processing times and putting in place sound foundations fo
provide a more modern, efficient, resilient and responsive Development Management
Service. It should however be noted that, whilst performance may be temporarily impacted
by the implementation of the new elecironic planning system during 2022-23, progress in will
continue to be monitored quarterly through the Corporate Risk Register and bi-annually
through the Performance Improvement Plan.

4. Absenteeism

The 'failure to adequately manage sickness absence resulfing in delays and an inability fo
deliver Council services' is included as a risk in the Corporate Risk Register. Between 2019-20
and 2020-21, Newry, Mourne and Down District Council recorded a decrease in the number
of days lost per employee, from 15.80 days (which was above the Northern Ireland average
of 14.2 days) to 13.55 days. This includes a significant reduction in short term absence, which
decreased from 4.10 days to 2.37 days lost per employee and is the lowest level of short ferm
absence recorded since 2015-16. Significantly. 63.5% of the workforce (654 employees) had
no recorded absence during 2020-21, which is an improvement when compared to the
46.2% of employees with no recorded absence during 2019-20.

However, between 2020-21 and 2021-22, the number of days lost due to sickness absence
increased by 5,671 days, from 12,107.5 days to 17,778.5 days, representing an overall
increase of 46.8%. This can partially be atiributed to the upsurge in days lost due to
coronavirus and vaccine reaction, which increased by 397.1%, from 608 days in 2020-21 fo
3,022.5 days in 2021-22.

Senior management continues to put in place arrangements to monitor and reduce the
number of days lost per employee:

« Adoption of the Managing Attendance Policy and Procedure in April 2020 and
subsequent implementation, which formed part of an internal audit in April 2021. The
Council's Internal Auditors concluded that the systems and controls in place for
managing attendance at work are satisfactory. Seven recommendations were put
forward, five of which are fully implemented and two remain partially implemented.

« Ongoing provision of support and guidance to line managers, reminding them of
their responsibilities in relation to absence management, return fo work meetings and
the completion of the mandatory fraining on the Council's e-learning platform.
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e Quarterly reporting of absence management figures to the SMT and SP&R Committee
and moenthly reporting of outstanding return fo work meetings to CMT.

« Introduction of the Corporate Performance Dashboard which includes two
performance measures in relation fo the number of days lost and outstanding return
to work meetings. The Dashboard is monitored and reported to the SMT and CMT on
a quarterly basis and the data is analysed at a corporate, directorate and
departmental level, providing an insight info areas of good performance and areas
of under performance, which may benefit for targeted intervention.

+ Introduction of a number of initiatives over the past few years to support employee
health and wellbeing. including the establishment of the Health and Wellbeing
Working Group and implementation of People Perform Grow which provides an
opportunity for employees to discuss any health and well-being matters with their line
managers. People Perform Grow will be rolled out to employees at tier 5 and above
during 2022-23.

However, senior management recognise that further improvements are required to address
the recent upsurge in the number of days lost due to sickness absence and further actions
will be highlighted within Council's Corporate Risk Register.

5. Digital Information and Cyber Security

Digital Information and Cyber Security is a significant governance issue and is overseen
through the Councils Risk Management Processes. It is currently one of our red risks on
Councils Corporate Risk register; ‘'Risk of a cyber security event causing significant
operational, financial and reputational damage to the Council'.

There has been a maijor increase in Secuirty threats from March 2020. The increase in threat
activity is projected to continue on a steeper frajectory over the course of, at least, the next
5 years.

In June 2022 Council was subject to a cyber incident which was classified as a ‘'near miss’.
The Councils systems were offline for 5 days and normal operations were interrupted for
several weeks which highlights the threat and disruption a successful attack would have on
Council operations.

Council are currently progressing several actions to mitigate the Digital information/Cyber
risk;

e Development of Service Area Business Continuity Scenario Plans with a focus on
cyber security/disaster recovery and ensuring critical functions are operational;

» Implementation of additional security measures including multifactor authentication,
conditional access and modern authentication where possible and appropriate;

¢ Increasing User resilience though continual training, testing and remediation;

« Continuing to engage with and follow guidance from the National Cyber Security
Centre (NCSC) and avail of Active Cyber Defence tools from NCSC and supplement
with vulnerability and penetration testing, actioning recommendations resulting
therefrom where possible and appropriate;

e Working through lessons learned internally and by peers and other organisations to
continually improve detection and response; and

e Maintaining robust change management controls.

6. Succession Planning and Talent Recruitment

Council has long term plans that are in place for the District including our ambitious capital
plan and the Belfast City Region Deal. It is imperative there is effective succession planning in

38



place. Currently all Councils are finding it difficult to fill Senior positions and skills gaps have
been identified in several service areas including capital works, procurement and waste
management posts.

As we move forward there needs to be a stronger focus on attracting a more diverse pool of
talent to the Council and upskilling our existing talent to have adequate succession plans to
fulfil vacancies at all levels including Senior Management.

Council are cumrently working in conjunction with the Local Government Staff Commission to
contribute to the regional Talent Management Strategy. Another solution is offering
apprenticeships across certain service areas. The first apprenticeships will be taking up posts
in Council in September 2022.

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further
enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the
need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor
their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

Signed
Date
CHAIR

Signed
Date
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

on behalf of Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
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NORTHERN IRELAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT BODIES'

REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
INTRODUCTION

The Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northem Ireland) 2015 require larger local government baodies to
prepare a remuneraiion report as part of the statement of accounts.

ALLOWANCE AND REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS
COUNCILLORS

Allowances are payable by councils to councillors and committee members under Part 3 of the Local Government Finance
Act [Northern Ireland) 2011 and The Local Government (Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2012, which
came into operation on 1 April 2012.

Guidance and determinations on Councillors’ Allowances applicable from 1 April 2021 were issued by the Depariment for
Communifies on 8 March 2021 (Circular LG 07/2021). Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors are published on

council websites,

Following local elections on 2 May 2019, 462 councillors were elected to the 11 new councils for a four year term. Newry,
Moumne and Down District Council had 41 councillors in 2021 /22.

SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees employed by the Council is determined by the Council in line with that determined by
the Nafional Joint Council (NJC) for Local Government Services. Senior staff are those staff who are members of the Executive
Management Tearmn/Senior Management Team.

Council appoiniments of employees are made in accordance with the Local Government Staff Commissions’ Code of
Procedures on Recruitment and Selection, which requires appeiniment to be on merit and on the basis of fair and open
competition.

Unless otherwise stated below, the officials covered by this report hold appeintments which are open-ended.

INDEPENDENT MEMBER - AUDIT COMMITTEE

Brona Slevin is an Independent Member and Chairperson of the Audit Committee. The role is to help promote the highest
standards in the financial management of the Council and thereby ensure the accountability of public funds. This is a four year
temporary appointment from 15 April 2019 until 31 March 2023. A payment of £500 is paid per meeting (this includes
preparation time of £250 and £250 for the meeting), plus fravel and expenses. In 2021/2022 she was paid £46,500 meeiing
allowance (at a cost of £6,624.58) with no travel costs claimed.
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ALLOWANCES PAID TO COUNCILLORS m

The total amount paid to Councillors by woy of allowances, under Part 3 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern
Ireland) 2011 and the Local Government (Payments fo Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2012 was:

Table 1: Total Allowances paid fo councillors (audited information)

Allowance 2021/22 2020/21
Total Allowances Number of Councillors Total Allowances Number of Councillors
£ receiving the Allowance £ receiving the
Allowance
Basic Allowance 644,722 42 634,926 42
Special Responsibility 77671 28 76,334 29
Allowance
Chairperson 20,165 2 20,165 2
Allowance
Vice Chairperson 6,293 2 6,293 2
Allowance
Mileage Allowance 17,905 24 7096 18
Public Transport and 7.557 & 508 2
Other Travel
Incidentals
Subsistence 1,581 é 150
Courses/ Conferences 4,465 7 8,175
Visits (registration &
joining fees)
Dependents’ Carers 1.590 1 2,283 1
Allowance
TOTAL ALLOWANCES 781,949 - 755,930

Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors in 2021/22 are published on the council website at
www.newrymournedown.org/councillors-allowances-and-expenses.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees covers the Execulive Management Team/Senior Management Team. The following
table provides detdils of the remuneration paid to senior employees:

Table 2: Remuneration (including salary)[audited information]

Officers 2021/22 2020/21
Salary (Full Bonus Benefits in Total Salary (Full Bonus Benefits in Total
year Payments | kind (to year Payments | kind (to
equivalent in nearest equivalent in nearest
brackets £100) brackets £100)
where £'000 where £'000
applicable) £'000 applicable) £'000
£'000 £'000
Marie Ward
Clerk & Chief Executive 125-130 B 100 125-130 115-120 - 100 120-125
Michael Lipsett
Director of Active & 90-95 100 90-95 85-90 - 100 85-90
Healthy Communities
Dorinnia Carville 90-95
DEﬂUthhrlef Executive (95 - 100 full . 100 90-95 85-90 100 85-90
Designate year
(From 01/02/2022) eqguivalent)
Roland Moore 45-50 50- 55
Director of Neighbourhood ) ) ) (85 - 90 full 100 (85 - 20 full
Services year year
{Until 02/11/2020) equivalent] equivalent)
Conor Mallon
Director of Enterprise, 85-90 - 100 85-90 85-%0 100 85-90
Regeneration & Tourism
Jonathon McBride 70-75 70-75
Director of Ne'lghbourhood 85-90 g 100 85- 90 (BO - 85 full 200 {80 - 85 full
Services year year
(From 02/11/2020) equivalent) equivalent)

The role of Deputy Chief Executive is not assigned o any nominated Director position, but rather the additional responsibilities
can be assigned to any substantive Director role. As such, remunerafion will be paid via an honorarium allowance, added fo
the respective Director salary at the fime of assuming this responsibility. The honorrium will continue to be paid for undertaking
this role and should it become necessary for the additional responsibilifies of Deputy Chief Executive to fransfer to another
Director position for whatever reason, payment of this honorarium allowance will cease.
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Councils are required to disclose the relationship belween the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Execufive
Management Team/Senior Management Team and the median remunerafion of the Councils workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Management Team/Senior Management Team in the
financial year 2021/22 was £125k - £130k. This was 5.31 times the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £23,953.

Table 3: Relafionship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Management Team/Senior
Management Team and the median remuneration of the Councils workiforce (audited information)

2021/22 2020/21
Salary Band of Highest Paid member of the £125k - £130k £115k - £120k
Executive Management Team/ Senior
Management Team
Median Total Remuneration £23,953 £23,080
Ratio 5.31 5.20

In 2021722, no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest paid member of the Execulive Management
Team/$enior Management Team.

Total remuneration includes salary, bonus payments and benefits in kind.

Salary
“Salary" includes gross salary, overtime, and any gratio payments.

Bonus Payments
Bonus payments are based on performance levels attained and are made as part of the appraisal process. Bonuses relate o
the performance in the year in which they become payable to the individual. The bonuses reported in 2021/22 relate fo

performance in 2021/22.

Benefits in Kind
The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits provided by the employer and treated by HM Revenue and

Customs as a taxable emolument.

Exit Packages for staff
The number of exii packages provided to all staff by the Council, together with total cost per band and total cost of the

compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below:

Table 4: Exit Packages in 2021/22 (audited information)

2021/22 2020/21
Number of Number of Total Total Cost of | Number of Number of Tolal Tolal Cost of
Compulsory Other Number of | Packagesin | Compulsory Other Number of | Packages in
Severance Package | Redundancies | departures Exit each Cost |Redundancies| departures Exit each Cost
Cost Band agreed |Packagesin Band agreed Packages Band
each Cost £'000 in each £'000
Band Cost Band
£0 - £20,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
E£20,001 - £40,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
£40,001 - £60,000 0 o} 0 0 0 0 0 0
£40,001 - £80,000 o] 0 0| 0 0 0 0 0|
£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0|
£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0| 0 0 0| 0 0
£150,001 - £200.000 4] 1 i 1460 0 0 0 0
Total 0 1 1 160 0 0 0 0
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Pension Benefits

The Local Government Pension Scheme [Northern Ireland) (the Scheme] which is a funded defined benefit pension scheme,
which provides retirement benefits for council employees on a “career average revalued earnings” basis from 1 April 2015.
Prior to that date benefits were built up on a “final salary™ basis.

From 1 April 2015, @ member builds up refirement pension at the rate of 1/49th pensionable pay for each year. Pension benefits
in relation to membership between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2015 were built up at the rate of 1/60th pensionable pay for
each year of membership. There is no automatic lump sum provided in respect of membership after 31 March 2009, Pension
benefits in relation to any membership before 1 April 2009 were built up at the rate of 1/80th (pension} and 3/80ths (tax-free
lump sum] of pensionable pay for each year of membership up to 31 March 2009. At retirement, members may give up some
pension for additional lump sum, subject to HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) limits. The conversion rate is £12 additional lump
sum for every £1 of pension given up.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 201 1. The Scheme application is modified to reflect the fact that
councillors hold an elected office. Councillor rnembers have always accrued pension on a career average basis. Prior to 1
April 2015 pension was accrued at a rate of 1/60th and thereafter at a rate of 1/491h.

The Scheme is funded by contributions made by both employees/counciliors and employers. Prior to 1 April 2009, a member's
confribution rates were fixed at % of their pensionable remuneration (except for those who were entitled to contribute fo the
scheme at 5% before 1 February 2003 and have remained in coniinuous employment). Tiered member contribufion rates,
determined by the whole-time equivalent rate of pay. were infroduced from | April 2009. From 1 April 2015, the member
confribufion rates are determined on the actual rate of pay.

The ranges for the bands for fiered contribution rates are revised by the Department for Communities in April each year in
accordance with the increase applied o a pension in payment. The bands, effective from 1 April 2021, were as follows:

Table 5: Employee Contribution Rates

Band Range Employee Contribution Rate
Main Seciion 50:50 Section
i £0 - £15,000 5.5% 2.75%
2 £15,00] - £23,000 5.8% 2.90%
3 £23,00] - £38.400 6.5% 3.25%
4 £38,401- £46,600 6.8% 3.40%
5 £46,601 - £92,300 8.5% 4.25%
] Mare than £92,300 10.5% 5.25%
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Employers' contribution rates are determined by the fund's actuary every three years at the triennial valuation. A formal
friennial actuarial valuation of the Fund as at 31 March 2019 was carried out in 2019/20 and set the employer confribution raies

for the 3 years commencing 1 April 2020 as follows:

Table &: Employer Contribution Rates

Year Employer Contribution Rate
1 April 2020 - 31 March 2021 19.5%
1 April 2021 - 31 March 2022 19.5%
1 April 2022 - 31 March 2023 19.5%

The Local Gavernment Pension Scheme Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 27 June 2014 and The Local
Gavernment Pension Scheme [Amendment and Transitional Provisions} Regulations (Nerthern Ireland) 2014 were made on 30

June 2014, Both sets of regulations are effective from 1 April 2015.

Councillors have been able o join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore have not accrued significant benefits thus far.
However, the in-year pension contributions made by the Council for all councillors during 2021/22 was £136,583.

The value of pension benefits of the most senior management of the Council accrued during the yeor was as follows:

Table 7: Pension Benefits of senior staff in 2021/22 (audited information)

Officers Accrued Pension at Real increase in pension| CETV at CETV at Real increase in CETV
pension age as at and related lump sum af|  31/3/22 31/3/1
31/3/22 pension age £'000
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Marie Ward
Clerk & Chief nozrir}]:’s?; - . ozh‘-_on; 2'55; - 302 263 18
Executive P
Michael Lipsett 45 - 50 1.0-1.5

Director of Active & plus lump sum of plus lump sum of 887 831 22
Healthy Communities 75-80 {-1.0) - {-1.5)

Dorinnia Carville
Deputy Chief 20-25 1.5-20

Execulive Designate na lump sum no lump sum we3 e ke

{From 01/02/2022)

Roland Moore
Director of
Neighbourhood = » - 269
Services
{Unftil 02/11/2020)

Conor Mallon
Director of Enterprise, 5-10 1.5-2.0 83 60 13
Regeneration & no lump sum no lump sum
Tourism

Jonathon McBride
Director of 25-30 35-40
MNeighbourhood plus lump sum of plus lump sum of 338 271 51
Services 20-25 3.0-35
{From 02/11/2020)
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The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)

This is the acluarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in
time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's pension payable from the scheme.
It is a paymeni made by a pension scheme or arangement to secure pension benefils in another pension scheme or
arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the pension benefits they have accrued in their
former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their
total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies. CETVs are
calculated in accordance with The Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Values) (Amendment] Regulations and do not
take account of any actual or potential reduction to benefils resulting from Lifetime Allowance Tax which may be due when
pension benefits are taken.

The real increase in the value of the CETV

This reflecls the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due
fo inflation, confributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits fransterred from another pension scheme
or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.

Chief Executive
22 September 2022
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Cerificate of the Chief Financial Officer

| certify that:

o] the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 315t March 2022 on pages 53 to 56 has been prepared in the form
directed by the Depariment for Communities and under the accounting policies set out on pages 57 to 76.

(b)  in my opinion the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for
the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year ending 31st March 2022,

Chief Financial Officer

Date 22/09/2022

Council Approval of Statement of Accounis

These accounts will be approved by resolution of the Council/Committee on 22 September 2022.

Chairperson

Date 22/09/2022

47




Agenda 9.0 / 9 NMDDC Statement of Account 2021-22 - post audit.pdf

independent Auditor's Report to the Members of the Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in gccordance
with generally accepled accounting practices, rather than the amount fo be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover
expenditure in accordance with statutory requirements: this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in
both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement in Reserves Statement,

2021/22 2020/21

Gross ‘ Net - 3 ;
E it Gross me: diture diture
2 Income shore Gross Expenditu Gross Income Net Expen

Service Expenditure Moles & £ £ £ £ £
Chiel Executive 2 2,184,071 {463.1%1) 1,720,880 2.611.850 (1,890,495 721,355
Corporate Services 2 19.327.914 1415,766) 18,912,148 12.919.544 (346,487 12.573.064
T;:Ji;?:se_ Regeneralion & 2 17.186.747 (7,184,614) 8.002.133 15,746,937 (6,463,797} 9.283.140
Meighbiourhood Services 2 79,990,980 (1.894.585) 28,094,395 31031515 [2.449.044] 28,582,471
Acitg & HosIbY 2 17,209,327 (5288611) 11920716 17,269,860 (4.280,518) 12,989,342

Communilies

Gast of Senvicas on Confining 85,899,039 (17.248,767) 66,650,272 79,579,708 (15,430,338 64,149,372
Operations
F:gf;gperm'”g Spgnaluel g 635,558 (777.350) (141,792 2,790,271 (1,267,360} 1,522.911

Financing and investmeal

195
Income and Expenditure ? 3.482.654 {448.780) 3.033.874 3,443,066 (95,537) 3.347.529

{5urplus) or Deficit on
Discontinued Operations

Shore ol Operaling Resulls of et
associates and joint ventures

Net Operating Expendilure 90,017,251 (18.474,897) 71,542,354 85,813,045 (16,793.233) 69,017,812

Taxation ond Nor-Specilic

- =] - l : u
gk 10 (49.888.839)  [49.888,839) (74915.733) (74915733

{Surplus)/Deficit an the 90,017,251 (88,363.736) 1,653,515 85,813,045 (91,708,968) (5.895,921)

Provision of Services

[Surplus] /Deficit on
revolugtion of non-curren! I (7,948,814}
assels

(2.509.372)

Impairment lassas an non-
cument gssels charged 1o the 1
Revaluation Reserve

Surplus/ [Deficil) ansing on
revaluation of gvailoble-tor-
sale financial assets

rRemeasurements of the Met
Defined Benefit Liobility 21 |24,649,000) 2,810,000

[Asset)

Share of Other

Comprehensive Expenditure

& Income of associates and g 3 E
Jjoint ventures

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (32,417.814) 7,300,628

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (30.944,299) 1,404,707
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council m

Movement in Reserves Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the year o the end on the dilferent reserves heldby the
authority, analysed into 'usable reserves’ {ie those that can be applied fo fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other
‘unusable reserves. The Statement shows how the movements in year of the Council's reserves are broken down between goins and
losses incurred in accordance with generally accepled accounting practices and the statutory adjustment required to return o the
amounts chargeable to council tax for the year. The Net Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory Generol Fund Balance
movements in the yeor following those adjustments,

© Generolfund  OtherFund Copital

‘Summary  Baloncesond  Receipts
i 2 £ ik £

Balance as at 1 April 2020 1.708.8565 747.613 - 12,455,478

Movement in reserves during

the year
sinslucAbsnail on he 5895921 : : 58959721 . 5895921
provision of services
Other Comprehensive

) . . 7
Income and Expendiiure (7:300,628) (ZX08a28)
Tokal Camprahantive.Income 5,895,921 . : 5,895,921 (7.300,628) (1.404,707)

and Expenditure

Adjustments belwesn
accounting biasis & funding 2,778,230 . . 5.778.230 |9.804,870) (26,640)

under regulations

Net increase before transfers
to Stalutory and Other 15,674,151 - - 15.474.151 (17.105.498) (1.431.347)

Reserves

Transfers 1o f fkom Slatutory

and Other Reserves (B154.747) R4 - ’ = 2

Increase/ Decrease in year 7.519.402 8,154,74% - 15474151 (17.105.498) (1.431,347)

Balance as at 31 March 2021 19,228,267 8,902,342 - 28,130,629 24,817,211 52,947,840

Movement in reserves during
the year

Surplus/ (Deficil] on the ) ) )
provision of services [1.453.515) {1.653.515) [1.653.515)

Olher Comprehensuv_e - . ) ) 33617814 o
Income and Expendilure

Total Comprehensive Income (1.653,515)

and Expenditure & - [1,653.515) 32,417,814 30,964,299

Adjusiments belween
accounling basis & funding 9.383,657 (216,572 . 9,167,085 (9.147,085)
under regulations

Net increase before fransters

fo Statutory and Other 7,730,142 (216,572) : 7,518,570 23,450,729 30,964,299
Reserves
HHEID Y v Ry (15.808.275) 15.808.275 - .

and Other Resemves

Increase in year (8,078,133) 15,591,703 - 7.513.570 23,450,729 30,964,299

24,494,045 35,644,199 48,267,940 83,712,137

11,150,134

Balance as at 31 March 2022
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Balance Sheet as ot 31 March 2022

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the asseis and liabiiities recognised by the Council. The net assels
of the Council (assets less liabilities) are motched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reparted in two categories. The first
category of reserves are usable reserves, ie those reserves that the Council may use fo provide services, subject to the need to maintain
a prudent level of reserves and any statutery limitations on their use. The second category of reserves is those that the Council is not
able to use fo provide services, This category of reserves includes reserves thot hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the
Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become avoilable to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold
timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Stalement line * Adjusiments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations’.

MNole 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
£ £
Fixed Assels I 194,519,563 186,642,457
Long Term Invesiments 16 - -
Investirment in Associates ond Joint Ventures

Long Term Deblors 15 80,351 115,844
Confract Assels ; ;

Contract Cosls

LOMNG TERM ASSETS 194 59%.914

Short Term Invesiments 14

Inventories 14 575,385 507,890
Short Term Debtors k5 14,609,971 9,825,600

Cash and Cash Equivalents 25 24.545.212 14,224,381
Assels Held for Sale 11 - .

35,730 588 26,557 871

CURRENT ASSETS

Bank Cverdraft 25 8,679 .

Short Term Borrowing 17 10,342,321 10,416,318
Shert Term Creditors 18 21035112 13,204,270
Provisions 19 2,843,669 500.000

34,229,781 24,120,588

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long Term Credilors 18 . .
Provisions 19 2.568.344 3.178.207
Long Term Bamowing 17 59385234 &3,707,557
Other Long Term Liabilities 21 54,255,000 69,362,000
Denated Assels Account 22 5 3
Capilal Grants Receipls in Advance 23

LOMNG TERM LIABILITIES 114,188,582 136,247,764

52947840

MNET ASSETS

USABLE RESERVES

Capildl Receip!s Reserve 26

Caopital Fund 26 15,000.000 .
Other Balonces and Reserves 26 %.494,065 B.902.362
General Fund 24 11.150.134 19.228.267

35,644,199 28,130,629

UNUSABLE RESERVES

Capital Adjusiment Account 27 44,288,017 41,797.91&
rRevaluafion Reserve 27 59.738.922 53,993.812
Pensions Reserve 27 {54,255,000) (69,362,000
accumuloted Absences Account 27 [617.371) [479,663)
Pravisions Discount Rate Reserve 7 [B84,628) [1.132,854)

48,267,940 24,817,211

MET WORTH 83,912.13% 52,947,840
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Cash Flow Statement ot 31 March 2022

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting period. The statement
shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the aperations of the
Council are funded by way of taxafion and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities
represent the extent to which cash outfiows have been made for resources which are infended to contribute to the Council's future
service deiivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on fulure cash flows by providers of capital
lie borowing) to the Coundcil.

Mote 2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Net Surplus/(Deficit] on the provision of services {1,653,515) 5895921
Adjustment for non-cash movements 25 19,069,946 16,505,093
: i ; ; i gz
Adijust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of 25 5.014.401) (7.972,859)

services that are investing and fingneing activities

14,428,155

Met cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from Invesling Aclivities 25 326,421 2,416,684

Net Cash flows from Financing Aclivilies 25 {4.416,318) (720,692

8.312.153 16,124,149

Met increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalants

Cash and cash equivalents ol the beginning of the reporting period 16,224,381 100,235

ash and cash equivalents of the end of the reporting period
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

1 Accounting Policies

a General Principles
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council's transactions for the 2021/22 financial year
and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2022. The Council is required to prepare an
annual Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Department for Communities in
accordance with regulations 3 (7) and (8) in the Local Government {Accounts and Audit)
Regulations (Northem Ireland) 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices.

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2021/22, supported by Infernational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The
accounting convenfion adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost,
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments,

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 also
requires disclosure in respect of:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

i) Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are
made or received. In parlicular:

- Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of goods,
is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in
accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their coansumption, they are carried as inventories
on the Balance Sheet.

- Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are
made.

- Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively
as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where it is
doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of deblors is written down and a charge made
to revenue for the income that might not be collected.
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ii) Acquisitions and Discontinued Operations

Newry, Moume and Down District Council has not acquired operations {or transferred
operations under machinery of government arrangements) during the financial year.

The Council has not discontinued any operations (or transferred operations under
combinations of public sector bodies) during the financial year.

iii) Provision for Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading Reviews

As each of the legacy councils had substantially completed its Single Status, Job Evaluation
and Pay and Grading Reviews, Council has not acquired an opening provision for such
matters. As the staff of the former legacy councils and those transferring in from the
Department of the Environment's Planning Service are protected by the Transfer of Protected
Undertakings Act {Northern Ireland) 2006 (TUPE), Council has not sought to amend these
employees' terms and conditions of employment. Appropriate provision will be made for any
financial consequences of employees' terms and conditions as and when required.

iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments
that mature within the agreed time frame or less from the date of acquisition and that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management.

v) Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council.

Confingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service
potential.
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Vi)

wii)

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannct be measured
reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts,

Employee Benefits

Shori-term employee benefits are those due fo be settied wholly within 12 months of the year-
end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
beonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees, and are recognised as
an expense in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made
for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, eg time off in lieu) earned by
employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward info the
next financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the
following accounting year, being the period in which the employee fakes the benefit. The
accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out
through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday entitiements are charged fo
revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Councii to terminate
an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision fo accept
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to
the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, to a corporate service segment at the
earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the
Council recognises costs for a restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require
the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the
pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required fo
and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’
Pension Fund administered by the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Superannuation
Committee. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (refirement lump sums and
pensions), earmned as employees worked for the Council.

59




Agenda 9.0 / 9 NMDDC Statement of Account 2021-22 - post audit.pdf

The Northern Ireland Lecal Government Officers' Pension Fund

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund is accounted for as a defined
benefits scheme.

The liabilities of the Northemn Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund attributable fo
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit
method - i.e. an assessment of the future payments thai will be made in relation to retirement
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee
turnover rates , etc, and projections of projected earnings for current employees.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the
Aon Hewitt GBP Select AA Curve over the duration of the Employer's liabilities.

The assets of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ pension fund atiributable to the
Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

quoted securifies - current bid price
unguoted securities — professional estimate
property — market value

unitised securities — current bid price

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
Service cost comprising:

Current Service Cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year -
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which

the employees worked

Past Service Cost — the increase in liabilifies as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements.

Within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), - ie net interest expense for the Councll,
the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the
passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expendifure line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this is calcuiated by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to
the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period - faking info account any
changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contfribution
and benefit payments.
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Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (Remeasurements)

The Return on Plan Assefs — excluding amounts recognised in the Net Interest on the Net
Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. This includes interest, dividends and other income derived from the
plan assets, fogether with realised and unredlised gains or losses on the plan assets, less any
costs of managing plan assets, and any tax payable by the plan itself other than tax included
in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the present value of the defined benefit
obligation.

Actuarial Gains and Losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the
actuaries have updated their assumptions, charged to the Pensions Reserves as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expendifure.

within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations

Contributions by Scheme Participants — the increase in scheme liabilifies and assets due fo
payments into the scheme by employees (where increased coniribution increases pension
due to the employee in the future).

Contributions by the Employer - the increase in scheme assets due to payments into the
scheme by the employer.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In
the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions
Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required fo
account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by

employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discrefionary awards of retirement benefits in
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated fo arise as a result of an award to any
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted
for using the same policies that are applied to the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’

pension fund.

The Northern Ireland Civil Service (NICS) Pension Scheme

As a result of Local Government Reform on 1 April 2015, staff that transferred from Centrat
Government to the Council retained membership of the Northemn Ireland Civil Service (NICS)
Pension Scheme. The schemes provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums
and pensions). However, the arrangements for the NICS Pension Scheme mean that liabilities
for these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the Council. The scheme is
therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future
payments of benefils is recognised in the Balance Sheet.
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viii)

ix}

x)

Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that
occur between the end of the reporting pericd and the date when the Statement of Accounts
is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period -
the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

- those that are indicative of conditions that arcse after the reporting period - the Stafement
of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have
a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their
estimated financial effect.

The Statement of Accounts may subsequently be adjusted up to the date when they are
authorised for issue. This date will be recorded on the Statement of Accounts and is usually the
date the Local Government Auditor issues the certificate and opinion. Where matericl
adjustments are made in this period they will be disclosed.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement
of Accounts.

Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in
the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of
the Council's financial performance.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period
adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices
or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of fransaciions,
other events and conditions on the Council's financial position or financial performance.
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had
always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.
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xi)

Financial Instruments

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initiclly measured at fair value and
are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of
interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cosh payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally
recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest]; and interest
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for
the year according to the loan agreement.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expendifure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be
spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term
that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount
receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged o the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Stalement to the net charge required against the General Fund
Balance is managed by a transfer fo or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics.
There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:

- amortised cost

- fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVYOCI)

The Council's business model is to hold investments fo collect contractual cash flows. Financial
assefs are therefore clossified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments
are not solely payment of principal and interest (ie where the cash flows do not take the form
of a basic debt instrument).

Financial Assets Measured at Amorised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured at fair value. They are subseguently measured at their amortised cost. Annual
credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount
of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the
financial assets held by the Council, this means that the amount presented in the Balance
Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest] and interest credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is the amount receivable for the year in the loan
agreement.
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i)

xiii)

Interest is credited to the Financing and investment Income and Expenditure line in the 1 71
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at a marginally higher effective rate of
interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to
increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that
the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial
year - the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against the General Fund Balance is managed
by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in

Reserves Statement.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are crediled or debits to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Foreign Currency Translation

Where the Council has entered into a fransaction denominated in a foreign currency, the
tfransaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the
fransaction was effective. Where amounfs in foreign curency are outstanding at the year-
end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses are
recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments cr in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable
assurance that:

- the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
- the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited fo the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have been satisfied.
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required o be consumed by
the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to
the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
caried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are safisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.
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xiv)

®v)

Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by
the Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected
that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the
Council.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is
technically feasible and is intended fo be compieted [with adeguate resources being
available) and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service
potential by being able 1o sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be
measured reliably as atfributable to the asset and restricted to that incured during the
development phase [research expenditure is not capitalised).

Intangible assets are measured initially ot cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value
of the assefs held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. In
practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore
caried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over ifs
useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indicafion that the asset
might be impaired - any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Ceomprenensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes,
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an
impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receips
Reserve.

Inventories & Long Term Contracts
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the FIFO costing formula.

Long-term coniracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services with the consideratfion allocated to the performance obligations satisfied
based on the goods or services fransferred to the service recipient during the financial year.
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xvi)

xvii)

xviii

Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way fo facilitate the
delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the
price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measureable date. As a non-financial asset, investment properties are
measured at highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually
according fo market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The same freatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Renials received in relafion 1o investment properties are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and result in
a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are
not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance.

The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement
in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts
Reserve.

Landfili Allowance Scheme

The Landfill Allowances Scheme cperates under the Landfill Allowances Scheme (Northern
Ireland) Regulations 2005. Local Authorities are allocated annual target figures for the
maximum amount of biodegradable municipal waste that can be sent to landfill but there are
no fradable allowances. It is not @ 'cap and trade' scheme since londfill allowances are not
tradable. For this reason, landfill allowances are not recognised as assets on the Balance
Sheet.

Leases

Leases are classified as leases where the terms of the lease fransfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered
separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfiment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of specific assets

The Council as Lessee - finance lease

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet
at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease's incepfion (or the
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a
liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added fo the
camying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down
the lease liability. Confingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

66



Agenda 9.0 / 9 NMDDC Statement of Account 2021-22 - post audit.pdf

Lease payments are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property,plant or equipment - applied to
write down the lease liability, and

b. a finance charge (debited 1o the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease
term if this is shorter than the asset's estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not
transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).

The Council is not required to raise district rates to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made
from revenue towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory
requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted
by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference
between the two.

Operaling Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at
the commencement of the lease).

The Council as Lessor - finance lease

Where the Council grants ¢ finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of
the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and
Equipment or Assets Held for Sale] is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A
gain, representing the Council's net investment in the lease, is credited fo the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal
(i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a
lease asset (long term debtor] in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisiion of the interest in the property — applied to write down the lease
debtor fogether with any premiums received, and

b. finance income [credited to the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).
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Xix)

The gain credited to the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not
permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a
capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund
Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the
amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future
financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts
Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are paid, the
element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write down the lease
debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts
Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against District rates, as the cost of non-current
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Council as Lessor - Operating Lease

Where the Council grants an operaling lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made
on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of
payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the
relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income.

Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an assef will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the
lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease fo
fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expendiiure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only
up to the amount of any previously recognised losses in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified
back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of its carrying amount before they were
classified as held for sale: adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would
have been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale, and their recoverable
amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Asseis that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale.

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet (whether property, plant and equipment cr assets held for sale) is written off fo
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposais (if any) are credited
to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the
gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of
disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.
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xxi)

Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and credited to the
Capital Receipis Reserve. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against district rates, as the cost of non-current
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are not charged to service segments.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected o be used
during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is
capitalised on an accrudls basis, provided that it is probable that the fulure economic benefits
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the ifem
can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential
to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is
charged as an expense when if is incured.

Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:
a. the purchase price
b. any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the locaiion and condition necessary foritto

be copable of operating in the manner intended by management
c. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantiing and removing the item and restoring the site on

which it is located

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incured whilst assets are under construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, uniess the
acquisition does not have commercial substance (ie it will not lead to a variation in the cash
flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost
of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council.
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Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assefs Account.
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statfement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

- Community assets and assets under construction — depreciated historical cost
- Land, buildings, infrastructure and surplus assets - held at current value

- Vehicles, plant & eguipment and other assets - depreciated historical cost

- Investment assets are held at fair value

- Heritage assets are held at historical cost and not depreciated.

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an
asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to
ensure that their carrying emount is not materially different from their current value at the year-
end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the
Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a
loss previously charged to a service.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2008 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into
the Capital Adjustment Account.

impairment

Assets are assessed al each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are idenfified, they are accounted for by:

a. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carmying amount of the asset is wiitten down against that balance [up to the amount of the
accumulated gains),

b. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Stalement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up fo the amount of
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not
been recognised.
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Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

-Land: Land is not depreciated as it has an infinite useful life.

-Buildings: Straight -line depreciation over useful life which depends on the type of property
and use- it normally ranges from 10 to 50 years.

-Community: No determinable useful life and not depreciated held at nominal value.
-Investment: Held at market/fair value - Not depreciated

-Infrastructure: depreciation is based on a straight line basis using the remaining useful life of
the asset.

-Landfill Site: End of Useful Life

-Heritage Assets: These are not normally subject to depreciation and are held at either Historic
cost or insurance valuation.

-Plant and Machinery: Straight -line depreciation over useful life which depends on the type of
asset and ranges from 3 to 7 years.

-Vehicles: Straight-line depreciation over 7 years.

-Infermation Technology: Straight-line depreciation 3 to 10 years.

-Assets Under Construction: Held at Historic Cost and are not depreciated.

-Intangibles: Software licenses and systems are depreciated over estimated useful life which is
normally 3 to 10 years.

Componentisation

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major componenis whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the ifem, the components are depreciated separately.

Revaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
cument value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being fransfered each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustiment Account.
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Heritage Assefs

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, arfistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to
knowledge and culture.

Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for future generations
because of their cultural, environmental or historic associations. They would be held by this
authority in pursuit of our overall objectives in relation to the mainienance of heritage.

The carrying amounts of herifage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment
for heritage assets, eg where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or where
doubts arise as to its authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in
accountance with the Council's general policy on impairment.

The Heritage Assets held by the Council include artefacts, historical furniture, civic items, Ross’
Monument, paintings and drawings.

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For
instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the
making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the
obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure
required to setile the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainfies.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year - where
it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a
lower setflement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the
relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered
from ancther party (e.g. from an insurance claimy), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles

the obligation.
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Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or fo cover
confingencies. Reserves are created by transfering amounts out of the General Fund
Balance. When expendiiure fo be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the
appropriate service in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transferred back into
the General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against District Rates for the
expenditure.

Cerlain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial
instruments, retirement benefits and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources
for the Council — these reserves are explained in the relevant note to the accounts.

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts fo
record the cost of halding non-current assets during the year:

a. depreciation atiributable to the assets used by the relevant service

b. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off
¢. amorfisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from
revenue fo contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement [equal fo
either an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance
with statutory guidance]. Depreciation, revaiuation and impairment losses and amortisation
are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance [minimum revenue
provision (MRP]) or the Statutory Repayment of Loans Fund Advances], by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for
the difference between the two.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to
the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year,
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital
resources or by borrowing, a fransfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General
Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged, so
that there is no impact on the level of District Rates.
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Value Added Tax

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her
Maijesty's Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investiment
properties and some of ifs financial instruments such as equity shareholdings at fair value at
each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants af the measurement
date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advaniageous market for the asset or

liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes info account a
market participant’s ability 1o generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Council uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation technigues in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the Council's financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, as follows:

= Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the authority can access at the measurement date

* Level 2 - inputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

* Level 3 — unobservable inpuls for the asset or liability.
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b Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted m

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the Unifed Kingdom (the Code) reguires
an authority o disclose information relating to the expected impact of an accounfing change
that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted. The Code
also requires that changes in accounting policy are to be applied retrospectively unless
transitional arangements are specified, this would result in an impact on disclosures spanning
two financial years.

The implementation of IFRS 16 Leases has been deferred until 1 April 2024.

c Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying accounting policies set out from 1a above, the Council has had to make certain
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

Estimation of the net liability o pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes
in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected retums on pension fund assets. A firm of
consulting actuaries AON Hewitt is engaged to provide the Council with expert advice about
the assumptions fo be applied. The pension figures disclosed in these financial statements are
sensitive to the assumptions used.

The calculation of the necessary financial provision for the capping and aftercare costs for the
landfill sites depends on a judgement around the appropriate discount rate to be used and
the number of years over which these costs are needed to be provided. The landfill provision
figures are sensitive to the assumpflions used.
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d Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty m

The Statement of Accounis contains estimated figures that are based on assumplions made by
the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncerfain. Estimates are made taking info
account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because
balances cannot be determined with ceriainty, actual results could be materially different from
the assumptions and estimares.

The items in the Council's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2022 for which there is a significant risk of
material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Valuations of Land and Buildings are carried out externally by Land and Property Services (LPS),
in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional
standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). As at the valuation date, LPS
considers that the pandemic and the measures taken fo tackle COVID-19 continue to affect
economies and real estate markets globally. Nevertheless, as at the valuation date property
markets are mostly functioning again, with transaction volumes and other relevant evidence
at, or returning to, levels where an adeguate quaniem of market evidence exists upon which
to base opinions of value. This is true of local property market sectors relating to each of the
asset types identified and valued. Accordingly, and for avoidance of doubt, our valuation is
not reported as being subject to 'material valuation uncertainty' as defined by VP3 and VPGA
10 of the RICS Valuation - Global Standards.
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Mewry, Mourne and Down Disfrict Council
Motes to the Financlal Stalements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

I"§ Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources {govemment gronts, rents, council
lax ond business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or eamed by authoniies in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices. Il also shows how this expanditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the
council's [direciorotes/ services/ departments]. Income ond expenditure accounted for under generally accepled accounting prochices is
presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemeni.

Chie! Exgculive 1,718,401 {2,479} 1.720.830 7122 [2.423] 721,355
Corparale Services 14,485,421 14,226.527) 1B.212.148 13347 335 Tra2n 12.573.064
Erterpriee, Regenaralion &

Touwtism A820.187 (4,172,924} B.002.133 4. 112,555 {5:170.585) 2.283 140
Neighbourhood Services 25.870.403 (2,223,392} 28.094.395 23.969.472 {4.612.9%%) 28.58247
Aclive & Heallhy Communities SA07.160 (2.111.554) 11.920.714 8191249 {4.7%8.073) 12989342

00 0 0 By 8

Other income and Expenditure (63,642,914) 3,353,843 (46,996.757) (46,013,704) 4,031,589 (70,045,293)

Surplus or Deficil

Opening General Fund

(7.730,142)

(9,383 457)

1,653,515

19,228 267

(15,674,151)

(%.778,230)

(5,895,921}

11.708.845

Surplus/ [Deficlt) on General
Fund Bolonce in Year

{8,078,133)

7,519,402

Clasing General Fund




Newry, Moume and Down Dishict Councll
Notes to the Financlal Stalements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

b Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

This note provides @ reconciiialion of the main adjustimenis 1o Net Expendiiure Chargeable 1o the General Fund to omive at the amountsin
ihe Comprehensive Income and Expendifure Statement. The relevant transfers between reserves are explained in the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

Adjustments from General Fund fo arrive af the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Staterment Amounis

Adjustments for
Capital
Purposes

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Bosis

Net Change for

the Penslon
Adjusimenis

Other Statulory
Adjusimenis

202122
Total
adjustmenis

£ E| £

Chiel Executive [2.479) {2:479)
Corporate Services 3.937.917 [8.137 000} [27.444) [4.224,527)
Enlerprise, Regeneration & Tourism [4,112.077) [53.869) [4,172.946)
Neighbourhood Services (2,433,102} - 209,110 [2.223.992)
Active & Healthy Communities (2,094,755 [16.801) [2.111.556)
MNet Cost af Services [4.70%.017) (8,137 000) 108.517 [12,737.500)
Other Income and Expendiiure from the 4,758,843 [1.405,000) 3.353,843
Expendilure and Funding Analysis
Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit 49,824 (9.542,000) 108.517 [9.383.657)
and Camprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basls

2020/21
£

Chiel Executive |2.433) {2,433)
Corporale Services 5,352,621 14,564,000 {14,350 774,271
Enterprise, Regeneralion & Tourism (5.124,454) {45,931) {5.170,585]
Neighbourhood Services [4.466,731] [145,248) [4,612,999)
Active & Heaolthy Cemmunities |4,778.128) {19,945) [4.798.073)
Net Cost of Services (7.016.892) (4,544.000) {228.927) (13.809.6819)
Other Income ond Expenditure from the
Expendiiure and Funding Analysis 5,212,589 {1.181,000) 4,031,589
Difference betwesn General Fund surplus or deficit
and Comprenensive Income and Expenditure
Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services (3.804,203) {5.743.000) [228,727) [5.776.230)
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Adjustments for Capital Purposes m

Adjustments te General Fund Balances lo meet ihe requirements of generally accepted accounling praciices, fhis calumn adds in depreciafion and Img
and revaluation gains and losses in the services line and for:

i} Other operaling expenditure - adjusts for capilal disposals with a fransfer of income on disposal of assefs and the amounts written off lor those assets.

i} Finaneing and invesiment income and expendilure - the statutory charges for capital financing ie Minimum Revenue Provision and ofher revenue con
are deducted from financing and investment income and expenditure as these are not chargecble under generally accepted accounting practices.

iii} Taxatien and Non Specific Grani Income and Expenditure - Capital grants are adjusied for income not chargeatble under generally accepted accou
praclices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in Ihe year e those receivable without condilions or for which condilions were salisfied th

the year. The Taxation and Mon Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital granis receivable in the year without conditions or for
conditions were safisfied in the year.

Net change for fhe Pensions Adjustments

Met change for the remaoval of pension contibutions and the addilion of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income:

for Services: this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the authority as allowed by stalule and the replacement wilh cu
service costs and past service cosis.

for Financing and investment income and expendifure: the net interest on the defined benefit liability is charged fo the CIES.

Other statutory differences

Olher stalutory adjustments between amounts debiled/credited lo the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and amounts payable/recei
be recognised under statute:

For Financing and investment income and expenditwe the ofher stalutery adjustments column recogrises adjusiments to General Fund for the liming dif
for premiums and discounts.

The charge under Taxation and non-specilic grant income and expenditure represents the difference belween what is chargeable under statutory regul

district rates and NDR that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income recognised under generally accepled accounting prac
the Code.

Other nen-statutory adjustments

The reportable segments are based on the organisational structure of the Ceuncil cemprising the Chief Execulive’s deparimeni and four direclerates.



Newry, Mourne and Down Diskict Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2
M segmental Income and Expenditure (Cument Year)

income and expenditure on a segmental bosis are analysed below!

Material tems| Interest in the|income Tax
. of Income and| Profit or Loss of| Expense of| cash items
Custom Associates| Income| other than
and Joinf Depreciation
Segments of| Venlures and
the Authority! Accounted for Amoriisafion
by the Equity
| Method
£ £ £ £ £| £ £ £ £
Chief Executive [34.3568) - - - - 394,852 - - -
Carporale Sarvices 371.187) . 18.776) | 2,059.581 555,083 4,769,237 . - 4,115.973
Enterprise, Regenergfion & T (3,884,248} - - . 1,820,831 1,785,210 - - 2,298,246
Neighbourhood Senvices (1.320.573) - + . 2,484,647 17.396.500 = - (54,.518)
Active & Healthy Communit] [1.497.197) - . . 2,242,691 5.580,974 - - (147 ,936)
Total Income Analysed on @
segmenlal bosis {7,109.561) - (8776 | 2.059.581 7,103,252 29,908,773 - - 6.211.765

Segmental Income and Expendilure (Comparative Year)

£ £| 3 e 3 W £ £ £
Chigf Execulive 5.600 - - - . [794.063] . - -
Corporgte Services [264,779) . [3.867) | 2,243,888 473,379 4,663,203 . . 5.794,000
Enierprise, Regenerafion & T [3.217.548) - - - 1,775.802 3,754,773 . . 3,348,852
Neighbourhood Services [1,081,034) - - - 2,631,329 16,061,952 - - 1,835,402
Aclive & Healthy Cormmunit] 364,048} . - . 2,269,486 4,641,232 . . 2,508,641
Total income Analysed on g|
segmenial basis (4,921,807} - |3.867) | 2.243.888 7,149 996 28,327 .0%7 . . 13,488,895

Covid Funding

The folowing amounts of Covid Funding received have been included in 'Material ltems of income and Expense’ above:

2021/22 2020/21

£ £
Chiel Executive 1379,307) | (1.890.79Q) | HMRC Furlough Income
Corporale Services - .
Enterprise, Regeneralion & Tounsm - {1.904,000) | DIC Covid-19 Recovery Revitalisolion programme
Enferpnse, Regeneralion & Toursm {3.515,000) - DiC Covid Recovery Smoll Setflements Scheme
Neightbourhood Services | (581,337] | (1.347,184) | DAERA Covid Funding
Aciive & Healthy Commmunilies {538,337) {894,970) | DIC Covid-19 Community Supporl Funding *
Total (5,013,283} | 16.040.944]

in addition, Depariment for Communities {DIC) Covid Funding Sunport of £1,753,397 (2020/21 £5,606,427) has been included in Taxation and Non-Specific Granl |
detailed at Mote 10a.

The amount of Covid funding received but not expended during 2021/22 has been tronsferred fo Usable Reserves as oullined at Mote 2é6c (i) ond {ii).

* DIC Community Suppart Fund [Tranche 1 - 3), Access to Food Parinership Fund, Financial Inclusion Partnership Fund, Food & Essential Supplies Fund,
Warm, Well and Connected Fund. Volunieering Support Fund, 2021722 £143.729 (2020/21 £8%6,970).

' DFC Community Support Fund - Support o Community Development and Advice, Covid-19 Financiol Inclusion and Social Supermarket Support Fund,
2021/22 £394,610 [2020/21 ENl).
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Motes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

EX:| Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

Expenditure

. Noles e D laE e SR BSOS S N

Employee Benefits Expenses 7 [35.348,952) [34,027.666)
Other Services Expendilure [45.612.653) (39.970.9%0)
Supporl Service Recharges - -

Depreciation, Amorfisation, Impairment 11 15.572.992) [6.848.412)
Interest Poymants 9 [3.464.281) {3,424.888)
Loss on the Disposal of Assets 8 - [1.522,911)
Oiher Expenditure [18.373) [18,178)
Total Expenditure (90.017.251) (B85.813,045)

2021/22

. Noles E A £ |

Fees, Charges and other service Income 17,884,325 16,697,696
Interest and Investment Income g 9866 5276
Districl rate income 10 58,720,377 57,609,482
Govemment granis and Conlributions 0 11,168,462 17,306,051
Support Service Income . -
Gain an the Disposal of Assets 141,792

Other Income 438,914 90,261
Total Income 88,343,734 91,708,966
Surplus or (Deficit) en the Provision of Services [1,653,515) 5895921

5] Revenue from confracts with service recipients
The Councll does not receive material revenue from contracts with service recipients.
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Adjustments between an Accounting Basis and Funding Bosis under Regulations
Amounis included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but required by stotule to be excluded when delermining the

Movement on the General Fund Bolance for the year

Amounis included in the Comprehensive income and Expendilure Statement but required by stalute lo be excluded when
determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year:

Impairments {losses & reversals) of non-current
ossels

Deracognilion (other than disposal] of non-current
assels 1 . .

Revaluation increases/decreases laken lo
Surplus/Delicit on the Provision of Services 1 {1.530.240) {301,583)

Deprecialion charged in the year on non-curmant
assels [ 7.103.252 5572992 7.149.995 6,848,412

Net! Revenue expenditure funded from capital
under statute 12 3,249,026 7964479

Camying amount of non curent assets sold B 635,558 2790271

Proceeds rom Ihe sale of PPAE, invesiment
property and intangible assets B [#77.350) [141.792) [1.247,360) 1522911

Difference between finance costs colculated on

an accaunting basis and finonce costs calculated

in accordance with statutory requirements

Ne! charges made lor relirement benefits in

accordance wilh 1AS 19 21 14,545,000 10,721,000
Employers contribuiions payable to the NMILGOSC

and refirement benefits payable direct to

peansioners 21 (5.004,000) 14.976,000]
Capital Granls and Donated Assets Receivable

and Applied in yeor 1o [4,237 051) {6.705.499)
Capilal Grants Receivable and Unapplied in year 16C

Roles Claw-Back Reserve
Adjustments in relafion to Short-lerm compensated

absences 27 137,708 126,020
Adjustments in relation to Lessor Amangemens

Landfill Regulafions Reserve Adjusiment 27 . 1
Provisions Discount Rate Reserve adjustment 27 [246,22¢) 102.907

Amounts not included in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement but required by
statute to be included when determining the
Movement on the General Fund Bolance for the

year
Statutory Frovision for the finoncing of Copital

Investment 12 [4.493,000) [5.826,000)
Direct revenue linoncing of Copilal Expenditure 12

%.383.657 #.778.230

Nef transfers (1o)/from slatutory and other
earmarked reserves: fa2 2021/22

2020/21 2020/27

Capital Fund

Inleres!

From Capital . :

Other 26 [15.000.000) [15.000,000) 627,613 627,613
Renewal and Repairs Fund

Inleres!

Other 27

Capilal Receipls Reserve

interes! -

Other 27
Other Funds ond earmarked reserves

Inleres!

From Other funds . .
Other 28 [808.275) [BOB,275) |8,7682,342) |8.782.362)
Unusable reserves

Capilal Adjustment Account -

[15.808,275) [8.154,749]
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.3l Cost of Services on Continuing Operafions

[:] General power of competence

Frior to Local Governmen! Reiorm on 15t Apdl 20135, expendilure for special purposes was lmited under Section 40 of the Local Government
finance Act [Morthern Ireland) 201 1. This seclion was repealed by Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act [Northern Ireland] 201 4.

Under Section 79 of ihe Local Governmeni Aci [Northern Ireland] 201 4, the Council has the power to do anything Ihat individuals generally may
do. Councils have the power lo do this with or without charge. The power ol competence is not imited fo beneiiling the area or its residenls nor
is It imited by existing powers,

The aclual expenditure under the power of competence amounted fo £0 during 2021/22 (£0 in 2020/21)

+] External Audit Fees

The Councll has incured the foliowing cosis relaling to the onnual audil of the Stalement of Accounts, cerfification of grant cloims and other
services provided by the Councils external auditors.

2021/22 2020/21
£ Ei
External Audit Fees 71.500 68.000
National Fraud Initiafive Fees : 1,244
Olher Fees 21,000 5,250

§2.500 74,494

The other lees of £21,000 (2020721 £5,250 | were incurred in respect of performance oudil services provided by ihe oppointed auditor,

'Sl Cperating and leases
Counclil as Lessor

ases

Tne Council has no linance leases as lessor.

b Operaling Leases

(Counc

Renlal Income recognised in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement in the curent year amaunts fo £317.223 (2020/21 £284.811).

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable operaling leases in future years are.

31st March 2022 31st March 2021
£ &
Not later than | year 281,376 233,448
Loter than | year and no later than 5 years 432,995 467,685
Later than 5 years 504,983 268,786

1,319,354 769.917

The assels leased by the Council to third porties are included in Ine colegories of Property, Plant and Equipment with carmrying volues of:

31st March 2022 31st March 2021

W VT £ £
Invesiment Properlies 3,670,002 3,230,002
3,670,002 3,290,002

Council as Lessee

c leases (Council as lessee)
The assels acquired under these leases are caried as praperty, plant and equipment in the Balance Shee! at the following nel amounts:

31st March 2022 21st March 2021

L]
o

Other Land and Buildings
Vehicles, Planl, Furniture ond Equipmenl

The Council s commilled to making minimum poyments under Ihese leoses comprising seftlement of the long-lerm liakility for the interest in the
property acquired by the Council and finance costs thal will be payable by the authority in luture years while the liabiiity remains outstanging.
The minimum lecse payments are made up of the following amounts:



31st March 2022

31st March 2021

leases lobilifies (net present value of minimum lease payments):

Curent

Mon- Curent

Finance cosls payoble in fulure yeors
Minimum Lease Foyments

The minimum lease poyments will be payable over the following periods:

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five yeaors
Later than five yeors

d Operaling Leases (Council os lessee)

£

1,971

Minimum Lease Paymenis
iist March 2022 31st March 2021 31st March 2022 315t March 202

£ £

5297

The future minimum lease payments due under non-concellable leases in future years are:

lease Liobilities

1
E

31st March 2022

31st March 2021

The expendilure charged fo services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year in refation to these leases was:

2014477

£ £
Mot later than 1 year 106,158 155892
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 397.049 346,844
Later than 5 years 1.511.270 1,317,902

1.820,640

£ £ I
Minimum lease payments 133,117 124,002
Contingent reniols .
Less: Sublease poyments receivable -
Total 133,117 124,002

84



Employee Cosls and Member Allowances
=] Stalf Costs

[ : E
Salaries and Waoges 25953318 25.503.530
Employers NIC 2,260,435 2,211,755
Employers Superannuation 5113812 5058963
Total staft cosls 33,347,545 32,774,248

In addition. ogency cosls during the year omounted 1o £2,001,387 (2020421 £1,253,418] and short term compensoted obsences during fhe year
amounted lo £137.709 (2020/21 £124,020).

The Council's current confibution rate to NILGOSC scheme is 19.5%.

Al last actearial valuation dated 315t March 2019 the funds assets meet 12% of liabilities ol that date [2016-96%).

Average Mumber of Employees - where FIE represents fulllime equivalent employees

[.! Average Mumber of Employees 2021/22 2020/21
FIE FIE
Chigl Executive 14 14
Corporatle Services 111 110
Enterprise, Regeneralion & Tourism 1 56 167
Neighbourhood Services 325 333
Aclive & Heollhy Communilies 289 245
Total Number 835 871

Actual
Numbers Numbers
Full-fime nembers employed 731 769
Pari-fime numbers ernployed 179 212
Total Numbear 930 981

IS Senior Employees’ Remuneration 2021722
] sl ) - £ £

£50,001 to £60.000 7 4
££0.001 1o £70,000 11 11
£70,001 1o £80,000 . 1
£80,001 lo £90,0000 2 3
£90.001 1o £100,000 2 -
£100.001 to £110.000

£110.001 to £120.000 . 1
£120,001 to £1.30,000 1 .
Total Number 23 20

.| Members’ Allowances

2 £
Solanes 3 -
Basic allowance £44,722 634,926
Moyor's & Depuly Mayor's Allowance 26,458 26,458
Speciol Responsibllity Allowances 77.671 76,334
Dependenis’ carers allowance 1,590 2.283
Employer cosls 188,797 190,119
Mileage 17,905 7.096
Conlerences ond Courses 4465 8,175
Travel & Subsistence Cosls ?.138 458
miscellaneous Cosls 17,530 17,083
Severance Paymenis > »
Total 788,274 763,132




Morthern Ireland Civil Service Pension Armangements

As aresult of Reform on 1st April 2015, staff ransfered from Cenlral Government to the Council are members of the Northern freland Civil Service

Pension Scheme.

The Morthern Ireland Civil Service Persion arrangements are unfunded mulfi-employer defined benefit schemes but ihe Deportment for
Communities is unable fo identiy its share of the underlying assels and llabilities, The most up to dale acluarial valuation was carried out as at 31
Mareh 2014, This valuation is Then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated to reflect curent conditions and rolled forward to the reporting
daie of the DOF Superannualion and Other Allowances Resource Accounts as at 31 Morch 2022,

For 2021/22, employers' conhibutions of £335.078 were poyable to the NICS pension arrangements ol one ol Ihree rates in ihe range 28.7% o
34.2% of pensionable pay. based on salary bands.

The scheme's Actuary reviews employer conlributions every four years following a full scheme valualion. A new scheme funding valuation based
on data as at 31 March 2016 was completed by Ihe Actuary during 2018-19. This voluation was used lo determine employer confribution rales for
Ihe intraduction of @ new career average eaming scheme from Apiil 2019, The contibution rales are sef lo meet the cost of the benefils accruing
during 2021/22 fo be paid when the member refires, ond nol the benefits paid during this period o existing pensioners.

Mo persons retired early on ilkhealth grounds as such the actuarial cost fer employees for the early payment ol refirement benefits was Lnil.

-3 Other Operaling Income & Expenditure

[-] Surplus/Deficit on Non-Curren! Assels (excl Investment Propedies)

2021/22 2020/21
£ >
Proceeds from sale [777.350) | (1,247,301
Carmying amouni of non-cumrent
assets sold (excl Investment
Properfies) 635,558 2.790.271
{141,792 1,522.811

Other Operaling Income/ Expenditure

2020/21

Income
Expendifure

Other Operating Expenditure 2021/ 2020/21
3 ; £ £]
[Surpius) [ Delicit on Non Current Assets {141.792) 1,522.911
Other Operoling {Income] f Expendifure ; -
(141,7%92) 1,522,911

LAl Financing and Investment Income ond Expenditure

[:] Interest Payable and Similar Charges

2021/22 2020/21
i B

Leose/hire purchase inlerest
Bank inferes! - -
Govemmen! Loon Interest 2059 281 2,243,888
Commercial Loan Interest - -

Diher inferes! |please speciiy)

2,059,281 2,243,888

+] Interest and Investment Income

2020/21
£ =B
Bank Interest 8,777 3867
Employee car loon Inlerest 1.089 1,409

MIHE Loan interes! raceivable
Invesiment income on Fund Bolances
Capital Fund

Repairs & Renewals Fund
Oiher Funds . 3
Other Investmenl incame - .

7.866 5.276
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[4 Pensions interest costs and expected return on pensions assets

2021722

2020/21

5] Surplus/ (Deficit) on frading operafions

| P £ £

Mel interest on the net defined

benefil fobility [assel] 1,405,000 1,181,000
1,405,000 1,181,000

2020/21
E

Income from trading

Expenditure

[Surpius)/Deficit for the year

! Income, Expenditure and changes In Fair Value of Investment Properties

Investment Pro

£

£

Income including rental ncome
Expenditure

Mel income from investment
properties

Surplus/deficit on sale of
investment Properties
Proceeds from sale

Carrying amount of investment
properties sold

{Surplus) [deficit on sale of
Investment Properties:

Changes in Fair Value of
Investment Properties

[58.914)

(60.261)

18,373

18,178

(40.541)

{42,083)

(380,000}

130,000}

Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure

[420.541)

{72,083)

2021/22
Gros:

Interast Payable and Similar

Charges 2.059,28) - 2,059.281 2,243,888 - 2,243,888
Interest and investmenl Income . |9.866) [9.865) |5.276) 15,2768
Pensions interest cost 1,405,000 1,405,000 1,181,000 1,181,000
Surplus/[Deficil] on frading

aperalicns . # . . ’ .
Olher investment income 18,373 158,914} [40.541) 18,178 160.261) (42,083)
Changes in Fair Value of

Invesimenl Preperiies {380,000 {380,000} {30,000 {30,000)

3,482 654

(448.780)

3,033,874

3.443.0646

(95,537)

3,347 529
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Taxation and Non Specilic Grant Income

L] Revenue Grants

2021722 2020/21
£ =
Ganeral [5.178,014) (4.994,125)
Other [1.753,397] [5.606,427}
[6231.411] [10.600.552)

Other Revenue Grants relote 1o Covid- 19 Funding Suppor from the Depariment for Communilies.

:] Revenue Grants - Unapplied

The Council has no Revenue Granis Unapplied.

4 Capital Grants and Donated Asseis - Applied

Govermnment & Other Granis -
Condilions met and applied in
year

Govemmen! & Other Granis -
Tronsfer from receipls in advance

Donoled Assels - Condifions met

Doncled Assels - iransier from
donated assels creditor

I-] Capital Grants - Unapplied

2021/22 2020/21
£ z
[4.237.051) |6.705.499)
(4,237,051} |6,7035.499)

2020/2

[
[ X
—

2021/22
et 3

Jin

Govemnmen! & Olher Granis -
Conditions me! and nol applied in
year

Other

-] District Rofes

Cumrent yeor

Finglisalion - previouws year

Transifional Refisl

Finglisation - ofher years

2021/22 2020/21
£ £
[57.534.054) | 156,346,735)
[1.186323) | (1,262.947)
(58,720.377)  [57.609.682)

Taxalion and Non Specific Grant Income 2021/22 2020/21

£ £
Dislric! Rale Income |58,720.377) |57.60%,682)
Revanue Granis 16,231,411} [10:.600,552)
Capilal Granls and Contribulions 14,237,051} [6.705,499)

(69,868,839)

(74,915,733)



L16°566°002

008°EE

95L'TS5'L

L99ELP 661

L5L°105°E

06L'ESE'L

9z

L91'2L9'51

LoooLL

£08'956

£0Z'S10°0pL

EZL5'01E'LE

ZZ0Z Y2UoW LE |b 5D aJuDjDg

3|05 0] PIEH
(+]woy / [-Jo} payssoioay

lgze'80L)

SELTT

165589

SIBJSUDI| g SUOIDOYIESO|DEY

Jauln - uoniubosasn

(zz¥'s9z's)

{ove'zES)

(z9¥'zEs'y)

looo'z)

(Zov0esy)

s|osodsi] - uoluBooaisg

530IAIBT
JO UOISIACId SY) U0 JIDiaq
1o snjding o juauunpd )

£99'6

fooo'oul

£99°6L

{ozoroz)

[1¥S7r)

(159]

S19'PB

0LE

=TTl
10 UOISIAOIL 8L} UO |1Du8g
10 snjding o} [sespainsp)

[58502J0U UCHONDASY

TSYLI9E

Z59'L99'E

SLO0'6ET

000l

gol'l

E0E'0LV'E

9PLLrS

arasay
ucyonipasy 0} [sesoaioap)
Js@snaioul UoyoN|DASY

suQyoUSQ

ST&'VYR'S

000'E

SZ4'LYR'S

SEQ'S5Y'P

Br996Y

780'E88

PRLUL

sucuIPpY
0 dy | ID 5D 33UD|Dg
juawnoduwifuoyoneidap

g SNjoAfISOD
usamiaq sjususnipy

660'6EL'761

9GL 6K L

E8B'TTST oL

FEFVYBLE

L87'F09°E

¢

[8L°/2R°61

100001

(9E956

P19 L6B'GEL

Z16'SSE0E

LZ0Z JudY | 4o sD 9oup|og

= 0 = LDUQ

ZZ0T HOWVW LE QION3 ¥V3IA JHL ¥OS
SjuaLWaID|S [D|DUDUl 3U} O} S3ION

N2UNOD J2SI0 UMOG PUD 3UINOW ‘AIMaN




pLL'B&L LB

£0Z'L61EL

00s'EZ

9542551

85k cze 981

E0T'LELEL

06L'ESE"L

5&

BOTLV'E|

689181

BLI'SLL

rOZ'SL00FL

clsolg’Le

ZZOZ Y2JDW (£ JO 5D 2oUD|og

ZZ0Z Y2IDW | £ §D SD adupjog

90§ 10} PlaH O
UQIDIUSSDID8) U0 DEIDWILLINT

SISJSUDI] F SUOHODISSOIDaY

B0 - uoubooesag

(p986Z9'F)

(p9B'6Z9°Y)

(Poe'6z9'r)

sjosodsiq - uoyiuBodasag

S20IAIBS JO UOISIACIY
8y uo jIoysq Jo snicing o}
S|DSIBASL/53550] IuaLunDdi|

aAISsay UOYDN|DASY O)
5|08IBASI/$8550] JUsuLIDd L)

(cas'opi’L)

(zes'orL’L)

lgzo'1)

(695'6E1°1)

SaTIANaS
1O UGS|ADI S} UD |Io)aq Jo
sNICiNg O} USYD} UoKDNDASY
Uo {NO USHUM UsHBIDBdBa

(z91'10g'y)

(z91'L0E"Y)

ge9el)

(os¥'a8z'¥]

2Ala5aY UOKDNDABY
WO |NO udjusm uojoisasdag

L10'ELS'?
608'5L9°91

LIO'ESS'Y
608°'5£9°91

rOS'PEL’L
ZF0'LLG'S |

rSO0E
V9L'85L

6G0'BTY'S

aboyD uoyoinaidag

1Z0Z ludy | |0 5D 3oUD|Dg

juswiodwjuoyoiosidap
B anjpafison
uaamiaq sjuswisnipy

40B'SL9'91L

408°SL9°7L

TrOLLE'51

PRLBSL

120z udy | jo sD 8duD|og

3




L60°6EL'T61L

09p'999

EBE'ZZS Pl

969 PRTE

LBLLTE S

L00'001

PLR LEB'SEL

LZ0Z Yy=ioW £ joSsD adupjog

(o9v'989°L)

(o9p'989°'L)

[soszes)

ErL'ITY

3|0g Jo) play
(+)woy / (-lo) payssooay

499085

0Fr'399

(162's8)

loos’£)

512ISUDJL % SUCHDDWSSODSM

=

Jauln - uowubBooais

(se5'064'E)

(Lzgsl

(pre'zeL'z)

{&8¥F' 108°T)

siosodsiq - uciwuBooasag

-

583188
1O UDEIADL4 BU} Ue jjouag
1o smcing o} jusiwodu)

(1sz'ozL'L)

{1sz'oeL’L)

(prsv0L)

{ve9 18y L)

saoAIEg

10 UOISIACI SUj U0 Jayaq
10 snjding o) sasnaloep
[58508J0Ul UoLDN|DASY

(r96'205'1)

(r9s6'205'L).

PR L68

198£'649°C)

SADITY UOHDNIDASY
0| sasnaidap/sas0aloul
UoYDNDASY

SUSIDUOQ]

698'88L°Y
LLL' PO 661

ZO'PEL'Y
PEO'OLS L& 1L

LOL 20k’

L8699
0BLBSL6L

Loo‘ooL

SESETY |
506 505 0%1

SO

[s]al™y
0Z0Z Iudy | o 5D 82uDiDg
jwawaodwifuoyopaidap
g 2N[DASI50D

usamiaq sjuswisnipy

LLLYI0'681

PEO'OLS L6L

LO£'TOF'E

08485161

§04'505°0F |

3

3

3

L00'001

ki

=

sli]ie

QZ0Z Y | 1o 30 9ouniog)




rlL'B6L (81

04Z'€90°081

954°€55°L
PSL6PSL

852 781
PLOLPRLLL

046L'ESE'L
L8P 909'E

SB0'0ST'E

SPLOLS'E

Zo0'0LlL

z0o'00L

687 181

POZ'SL00kL

ZLS0LE'LE

Z20Z Y2IDW LE jD SD 82UD|Dy

965'L61

LL9'168'SEL

Z16'558°0E

LE0E YoW | E jo SD aouDjog
S3N|OA HOO] jaN

0 G D + D|og

oi0g Jo} PIaH O}
Lo oIIss0I08) U0 palDUuIlg

Si|SUDI] *F SUCKDIIISSOIDeY

BUID - uoyuBooslag

(¥92)

(rez)

rd]

giosodsiq - uojubooaag

S20IAAS JO UOSINDIY
al} uo pyag Jo sniding o)
5|DSIBABL/SBSS0] U WDdiY|

SAIBESY UDIDN|DASY O]
S|DSIBABLSBS50| JuBLDTL|

(pee'16E°1)

(e’ 1se'L)

lesa't)

(194688 1)

SaDIMISS

JO UDISIAQI] BU} UO Joyag Jo

snIciNg O) USADY UOHOMDADY
uo o usajium uoyoinaidag

(see'210Y)

(9EE°£10'Y)

lesiwi)

(8£1'c00'7]

SAID58Y UDYONDADY
U N0 uajjum uoyoinaldag

pOS'ELL'?
6E9°LLE'S |

FOR'ELL'?
SETLLESL

Br&ToT |
BSEWZY L

SPETE
0LFZPL

162'88ES

afioyD uolbDaIdEQ
0z0zZ Iudy | Jo'so 23up|bg

usuwupduw/uoyoaidap
9 anoafisos

SE9' LLESH

SE9'14E'S 1

HEEYEIFL

oLrErs

0Z0Z [udy | jo 5D @ounjog

i

|3

¥ =
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Newry, Moume and Down Dishict Councll
Nates to the Finonclal Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

11 ¢ Poperly, plantend equipment

Depreciation

The tollowing usaful ives ond depreciation rotes have been used in the calculafion of depreciation:
- Buildings - 10 to 50 years straight ne;

- vahiches, plant, furmiture and equipmenl - 3 te 7 years siraight fine:

- infrasiruciure - s per Bulldings;

Anfermation jechnology - 3 to 10 years straight line;

- intangibles - estimated useful fife.

Revalvations

The Council cares oul a rolling programme that ensures thal all property, plant and equipments required to be measured at cunent
value & revalusd at least every five years, All valugtions were canfed oul extemndally by Land and Property Services, Valualions of land
and buildings were coned oul in occordance with Ihe methodaologies and bases for estimation set aul In the professional standards of
the Royal Institufion of Chartered Surveyors. Valualions of vehicles, plant, luniture and equipment ore bosed on historie cost adjusted for
dapracialion.

Mon-operafional Properly, Plant and Equipment (Surplus Assels)

The Council has surplus assels with o comrying value of £3,501,751 of 315t March 2022,

d Intangible Asse

The Council owns inlongible assets which relofe lo market rights, purchased licensed sottware and a ficence lor a mountain bike site as
fedllexwes:

T .
= . J e - —_— —— Y

Balance at stort of year:

Gross carrying amounts 5291745 5065074
Accumnulated amorisation 2,002,581 1,564,190
MNel carrying amount of start of year 3,289,164 3497884
Additions 2.8 225471
Derecognition - Dsposals (Cost) {217,009) -
Amortisation for the perod [510,235) {436,371}
Derecognition - Disposals {Amortisalion] 217,009 -

Dinher Change

3,050,845
Comprising:
Gross camying amounts 5.346,652 5.291,745

Accumulated ameriisotion 2,295,807 2.002.581
ommg arcun!l ol enc 3,050,845 3,287 164

m— - e — T - — = = = e ——= 2
o - + e Ao ~ = - = = - - _-! - g - —
e Mﬂtﬁ_%'u_‘_;‘;_-; LA L e} = - wil _-,_-:-—5— e T Rt == —___—1

The following items of income and expense have been occounted for in the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line in
Ihe Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement:

= oy —n

T * S = P J S
Rentaol Income from Investment Activities 58,914 50,261

= T P N T

Direct Operating expanes orsing from invesiment properties [18.373] {1B,178)
Net gain/(loss) 40,541 42,083

The lollowing table summaries the movement in ihe fair volue of invesiment properties over Ihe year

Investment Properiies

Balance of start of the year 3,290,002 2,240,002
Additions - .
Depaosals -

Met goinsflosses from falr value adjusiments 380,000

Transters tof from inventores
Transters to/ from property, plant and equipment
Other chonges

glarcs

3,670,002

Valuation process for tment Properiies

The tair value of the Councils investment property & measured annually ot eoch reporting date. All vaiuations ore comied out axtamally,
in accordance wilh the melhodologies and boses for estimate st out in the professionol standards of the Royol Institution of Chartered
Surveyoes,
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The Council’s callection of Heritage Assets is reporied in the Bolance Sheet al insurance voluation or histade cost. Thase ossels include
museum artefacts, works of art and civic items, Ross' Manument is also included which i situaied between Rostrevor and Warmenpaint,

The lollowing table summarses the Hedlage Assets held by the Councili

Herlage Assels

Atefacts
Historcal Furniture
Civie Ilems

Ross' Monumant
Pointings and Drowings

g Long-Term Assets - Leased Assels

1 = 5 T
== i 1k B
Cost or Valuafion
A1 1 April 2021 354,473 36,626 401,09%
Additions - -
|Disoesals .
At 31 March 2022 364,473 36,425 401,099
Depreclation
Al 1 April 2021 364,473 38,626 401.099
|Dispesals : s
Provided lor yeor . - -
Al 31 Mareh 2022 344,473 18,626 a01.09%

B s ===l

Met Book Value B

Af 1 Aol 2020 344,473 34626 401.097
Additions =

isoosals - -
At 31 March 2021 364,473 34,428 401.09%

Depreciation
Al | Agil 2020 355,652 35626 392,278
. I3 " - -

Pravided for vear &821 - BA21
Al 31 March 2021 344,473 38.628 401,099

Mot Book Valve =

h Revaluation
A valuation exerciss was camied oul by Lond and Property Services {LPS) as of 31 March 2022 on the Council's lond and buildings. Asa
tesull, the volue of land and buildings have increased fram £174.3 milion of 31 March 2021 fo £179.6 million at 31 March 2022, In ight of

COVIDI9, LPS has included o disclaimer in ther report.

“Waluations of Land and Bulddings are caried out exiemally by Land and Property Services [LPS), in accordance with the methodologies
and boses for estimation set oul in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors [RICS].

The pandemic and the measures foken lo tackle COVID-19 confinue to offect economies ond real estote markels globally,
Mevertheless. os af the volualion date property markets are maestly functioning ogain, with transaciion velumes ond other refevant
evidence al, or returming o, levels where an adequate quantum of morked evidence aexisls upon which to bose opinions of value. This is
Irue of Ihe ralevant local property morket sectorns relafing o each of the assets fypes identified ond volued harein.

Accordingly, and for the ovoidance of doubt, our valualion is not reported as being subject to ‘materal valuation uncerainty' as
delined by WP 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Valuation - Global Stondards.”



LB Coplial Expenditure and Capllal Finencing

13

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in 1he yeaor is shown in the table below fincluding the value of ossels acquired under
linance leases and PFI confracts), togathar with the resources thot have been used to finance . Where capital expenditure is to be
financed in fulure years by charges fa ravenue as ossets ore vsed by the Councll, the expendifure resulls in an inciease in the Copilal
Financing Requirement (CF). @ mesure of the capital expendiure incured histarically by fhe Council that & yet to be financed. The
CFR it analysed in the second perf of inis nole.

Capital Expenditure

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 90,850,727 92319.720
Capilal Invesiment
Property, Plant and Equipmen i 5844525 4,198,547
investmeni Properties - -
Intangible Assets 271916 225,671
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Copital under Statule

3,249,024 7.944,479
Invesiments - -
Other 159,153)
Sources al Finance
Copital Receipts {777.350) {1,267 3600
Government Grants and Other Confributions 10 (4,237 .051) |6, 705.477)
Transters from Formaried Reserves 1214,572) -
Sums sol aside rom Revenue:
Direcl Revenue Conhibutions . .
Minirmum Revenus Provision [4,473,000} {5,824,000)

Y0.452.621 70,850,727

Clesing Capilal Financing Requirement

2021722

Explanalion of Movements in Year
E

{358.108) 11.468,553)

Incraase/|decraaia) in underying need o Borrow

Assels acquired under leases

Amels ocguined under PRJPPP confracts

(358,104) [1,468,773)

n Capilal Financing Requirement

Fulure Capital Commitments

The Council hos an ongoing programme of copital works and the esfimoied cost of Ihe schemes % a3 follows:

Gross Cost Granl Aid Nel Cost

£
Sehemes underway : 31,168,164

Other Commilments | i

134,014,805 58,734,813

2021/22

Inventaries

3430 313,594

Ceniral Slores ¥ A
Other 191,955 | 194,196
Tolal 575,385 507,890

g5



|3 Deblors
"l Long Term Deblors

Government Departmanis

2021/22
£

2020/21

Other Councils

Public comparations and trading funds

Bodies externcl to general government

Employee car loans

7307

Revenus Grants

14.195

Copital Grants

Interest Receivable

Capital Debtars

Logrs and advances

39941

£3.541

Finance lecse deblors

Trade deblors

MIHE Loans

Cher

31,103

58,128

Impairmment of loans and receivables

Contract Receivables

Total Leng-Term Debtors
4 Short Term Deblers

Govemmean! Deparimeants

80,151
2021/22

£
1978010

115,864

2020/21
£
1,555,137

Other Counclls

60,307

Public coiparations and trading lunds

130,177

Bodies external fo general governmen!

MIHE loans

Employes car loons

9.617

13,529

Ravenue Grants

2,743,584

1,885,744

Copital Grants

3.721.119

inferest Receivabie

78323

Copital Deblars

Value Added Tax

1,050,184

1,366,032

Frepgyments

250612

252,142

Anance leose debtors

Othet

149,279

324,580

Trode recevabies

&40,806

898299

impairment loss - Trade receivables

[220.733)

[322.201]

Conlract Receivables

Total Short-Term Deblors

Total Deblors

[Pl redments S e = e e G e —

The Council has ne investments.

L P Bormowings
| Short Term Borrowing

Loans re-payable within ane year

14,409,791

14,690,342

10,342,321

¥.825 400

T.741,464

2020/21
£
10,414,318

Finonce lease Principal

|

Total Short Term Borrowing

2 Leng Term Bomowing

10,342,321

2021/22
g

10,414,318

Belween | and 2 years 4,091,304 4,342,321
Between 2 and 5 years 11,527 983 11,811,049
Belween 5 and 10 yeors 17,625,673 18,597,126
in more than 10 years 26,120,254 28957041
Government Loans Fund 59.365.234 83,707,557

£9,707 557 74,123 875

Total Barrewing

96



"

Creditors
W Short Term Credifors 2021/22 2020/21

S 2
Government Departmenis 1,588014 1.292.517
Other Councils 3.230.245 366,327
Public corparations ond froding funds 10,002 222,380
Bodies extenal lo general govemnment . -
Rates clowback
WaT . -
Remuneralion due fo employees 2.188.240 1.951.4%3
Accumulaled Absences &17.371 A79.643
Loon Interes] Poyable - -
Copital Crediiors 6,288 959 4,133,682
Receigls in advance 585573 555,748
Trode craditon 5451512 4. 180,474
Other 74,796 21,746
Contract Poyables . -
Tolal Shorl Term Creditors 21.035,112 13,204,270

Total Creditors 21,035,112 13,204,270

The creditor balance for ‘Other Councils relates mainly to legal and waste costs.

Mroymeitohioiclcsimses=tam e e ==t . 2=t e e T

The councll hos o target, where no other terms are agreed, of paying supplier invoices within 30 calendar doys. Duing the year the
Council poid . 17,440 invoices lolaliing E74,564.710.

The number of disputed invoices were 113

The Coundl pald:

15,442 [BER) involces with 30 calendar days targel:
3,042{1 7%/ invoices within 10 werking days targe!; and
1,998 invalces ouftide of the 30 agy fargel.

Frovisions
Increase in Inleresl cost
Balance os af provision Ulilised during Unused amounts and/or discount! Bolance as at 31
1 Aprl 2021 duving year yaar reversed rate changes March 2022
£ £ £ £ £
Landfill Closure 3.178.207 (281.373) (328.488) . 2,568,344
Stall Costs . . d :
Restructuing Cosls 500.000 2.343.649 - v = 2.843 469
Other . : . =
Total 3,678,207 2,042,298 (328,488) = 5412005
[Current Provisions | 500.000 | 2,343,669 | | | . 2,843,669 |
|Lang Term Provisions [ 3are.207 | 1281,373) | {328,488 | - | - 2,568,348 |
Tatal 3.478,207 2062296 (328,488) . 5412015

Comparalive Year

Increase in interest cosl Restaled Balance

Bolance aos at provision Ullised during Unused amounts  andfor discount as al 31 March

Provisions 1 April 2020 during year year reversed rate changes 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £

Landiil Closure 2,935,488 34114 (71.397) . - 3,178,207
Stalf Costs 75,000 . (57.312 [17.488} .
Restruciuring Cosls 500,000 . - - 500.000
Ofher - - . .
3,510,488 {128,70%) (17.688) - 3,678,207
[Cument Provisions | 575000 = | (57.312) | 117,688 | | 500,000 |
[Long Term Provisions | 2935488 | 314,116 | 71,397) | | | 3.178.207 |

3.510,488 314.114 {128.70%) {17.488) * 3,678,207

Landfill Closure
The expecied cost of landlill closure and oftercore costs of £2,568.344 is based on 1he perceniage utiisation of the landiil sites of both
Drumonckelly ang Aughnagun and has been recognised os a provision. Aughnogun Landlil Site wos closed os af 31st March 2015,

Dumanakelly Landfil Site ceased to take landRl on 30th Aprl 2016, Mow thal the sites hove closed it will toke o perod of ime before
thete will be o refiable frend lor closure and affercore cosls ond gos generalion income.

Reshucturing Cosis

Thir provision i far ‘Planning for the Fulure - o réview of Ihe directorate ond management siruciures.

v
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Cotegores of Ainancial Instrumenis
The following cotegories of linancial instrumenl are comed in the Balance Sheet:

Financlal Assels as ot 31 March 2022

MNon-Corent Curreni

Invesiments Debtors Investments Tatal
£ £

Fair Value ihrough prolit or loss = " = : .
Amertised cost . 80,351 15,539,421 854,631 14,474,403
Fair Value fhrough other
camprehansive Income -
designoted equity instrumenis L
Fair Volue thraugh other
comprehansive income - othar » - 005,791 . 2.005.791
Total Financial Assels ~ 60,351 24,545,212 B854.431 25,480,194
Mon-financigl Assats . ¥ 13,755,360 13,755.340
Tatal - 80,351 24545212 14,609,591 39,235,554

Debtors al amortised cost as at 31 March 2022

lrade Receivabies 640,804
Trade Recevables - Impairment Loss (220,733}
Governmeni Depariments - 278876
Scft Loans 39,941 328
Empioyee Car Loans 9,307 9417
Gas income Deblor 31,103 135,46
Other . 6315
Total 80,351 854,431

Financlal Assels as ot 31 March 2021

Nen- Cuirent Current
Investments Debtors Investments

Deblors
£

Far Value through pralit or loss . ‘ » . =
Amorfised cosl - 115,854 10,222.828 1,187,173 11525865
Fair Yalue through ather

comprehensive income «

designoted equity instrumenis

Fair Yalue through other

comprehansive income - olhar . . 4001,558 . 4,001,558
Total Financial Assets . 115884 16,224,386 1,187,173 17,527 423
Mon-Financial Assels . . . B.638.427 B.638.427
Talal . 115,864 16,224,386 2825600 26,165,850

Deblors al amortised cost as al 31 March 2021

Nan-Current

Trade Recevables

Trada Receivables - Impairment Loss

Gavemnment Depariments . 276,383
Soft Loans 43,541 3,281
Employes Cor Loons 14,195 13.52%
Gos Income Dablor 58,128 294,497
Othear * 23385
Tetal 115.864 1.187.173
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Financial Liabilities as of 31 March 2022

Non-Current Current

Borrawings Crediters Borrowings Creditors
E £
Fair Value fhrough profit or loss £ = 2 i =
Amortised cost 59.365.236 10,242,321 13.835.086 83.542.643
Total fnancial labiliies 59,365,236 . 10,342,321 13,835,084 83,542,642
Horelinanciol lobiities . . . 7,200,024 7.200,02¢
Tolal 59.385.236 - 10,342,321 21,035,112 §0,742.44%

Financial Liabilities as al 31 March 2021

Mon-Curren! Current
Bomrowings Creditors Bomowings Creditors
£ £ £ £

Fair Value through profif or loss . ’ .
Amortised cost 463,707,557 . 10416318 9.635,769 B83.759.864

Total financial liobilities 43,707,557 . 10,416,318 7,635,787 83,759,844
Menfinoncial iobilities - s . 3,568,264 3,548,264
Tokal 43,707,557 - 10,416,318 13,204,253 87.328,128

Material soft loans made by the Council

The Council has ane salt loan but doss not consider this to be materiol.

Employee Car loans

The Councll mode loans for cor purchasaes at 31/3/2022 to § employees, including two members of the Senior Managamean! Team, who
ara in posls that reguire them to drive regulady an the Councils business.

Interes! is charged on the loons ot Bank of Englond Base Role pius 1,.5%.

Balance of start of year:

Opening bolance 2723 28,588
Mominal value of new loans

granted in the yeaor 4,600 16812
Foir value adjustment on initic

recognition ; i
Fair value of new loans 34,323 45,378
Loomn repaoig {15.400) {17.455)

impairment losses

Increcses in discounted omount
Other changes . 5
Closing bolonce of end of yaar 18,923 27723

Marminal value at end of year 18.923 27,723
Veoluation assumplions

These loans have been valued at nominal volue os they are not corsiderad material to the Council.



Income, Expense, Galns and Lesses

202122

Surplus or Deficit an the  Olher Comprehensive Income
Provision of Services and Expendifure

Interest revenue

Financiol ossets megsured of

amortited cotl BT

Talal inerest revenue | 8777 |

interest expense | 2,059.281 | -

2020/21
Deficit on the Other Comprehensive Income

n of jervices and Expendilure

£ £

Interest revenue
financiol assets measured ol

amorised cost 3.847
Tolal Inferest revenue | 3847 | =1
Interest expense i 2,243,888 I : I

Falr Values of Financlal Assets and Financial Liabllifies

Falr Volues of Financial Assels and Financial Llablilities fhat are not Measured of Fair Value (but for which Falr Value Disclosures are
Required).

All the financial liabliities ond linoncial assets hald by the outhority are clossified os loans and receivables ond long-term debtors and
creditors and are earied in the Balance Sheet of amorised cotl. The far values colculated ore os follows.

31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Carmrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
Financlol Uabililies amount armoun!

£ E 3

Fingncial labiilies hakd of
amortsed cost {Loang] &9.707.557 70,608,353 74123875 82,144,387
Long-term creditons - - . ;

PFl and leose liabilities - . .
Talal &9,707,357 70,608,353 74123875 B82.144.382

The majaity of fhe Council's porffolio of Ioans are held wilh the Gevemment Loans Fund and cairy o premalure redemptlion penally if
the loans are repaid early

Other financial assets ond Rabilities including frade receivables, irade payables and cash and cosh equivalents.are carmed af cosl as
this is o fair appraxmation of their value,



Fair Values of Financlal Assets and Financial Uabilities thal are not Measured at Fair Value

31t March 2022

Quoled prices
in aclive Olher
markels for significant

Significant
unobservable

identical observable | - :
: S inpuls (Level 3)

assels (Level inpuls (Level 2)

L

Recurring fair value measuremanis
using:

Financial labililes
Financial liebillies held ot
amortised cost

Loans/borrawings 4 70,608,353 . 70,408,353
Tolal . 70,608,353 . 70,608,353

Financial asseis
Financial assels held at amortised

cost

Solt loans 1o third parties . 42,145 = 42,148
Other inoncial ossels - = 5 =
Tatal . 42,146 . 42,144

315t March 2021

Olher
significant
idenfical observable
assefs (Level inpuls (Level 2)
1}

Significant
uncbservable
inputs (Level 3)

Recurring falr value measurements
using:

Financial liabiifies
Financial iabikties hetd at
amortsed cost:
Leans/borowings 82,144,382 82,144,382
Tatal - 82,144,382 = 82,144,382

Financial asseis
Financiol ossets held of omaortised

oost

Sof loans to thid porties . 74,545 . 74,545
Cither financlol assets = -
Total g 74,545 - 74,545

The fair value for linancial iabifities and inancial ossats that are not meotured ot foir volue included in levels 2 and 3 in the fable cbove
have been orived ot using a discounted cash llow analysis with the mast significant inputs being the discouni rate.

The falr vialue for financial Bobilities and financial gssets tha! are na! meosured ot fair volue con be assessed by caleulating the present
value of trie cash flows thot will toke place over the remaining term of the instrumeants.

Other financiol ossets including frade receivables and cosh and cash equivalents are comed al cost as this s a falr opproximafion of
their value.
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Nalure and Extent ol Risks Arising rom Financlal Insiiuments

The Council's activifies expose it to o variety of financiol rgks:

Credit Risk

Credi risks arises from depasits with banks and finonciol institutions as well a3 credit exposures fo the Council's cuslomers. Custamers ore
assessed laking into occount their financial position, past exparience and other foctors, with individual credit limits being set in
cecordance with parameters set by Ihe Council. The provison lor bad and doubtiul debls reflects the Councl's assessment of the risk of
non-payment by frade deblors ond as such, there is no further additional estimated exposure to default and inability to collect.

Trade Deblors, Inclusive ol VAT, are analysed by age as lollows:

Less than thvee moning 459,203
Itvea lo six monihs 34372
six monihs fo one year B1.385
More thon one yeor 265,128
Total 1,050,088

The above figures include frode debls relotling to car parking, govermment deportments and other councils disclesed separately in
Nate 15.

Loss Allowance by Assel Class - Assels Held at Amortised Cost

Litetime expected credil losses - not credlt impaired

Opening Bolonce as at 1 Apvil 2021 352,201
Decrecse {101,448]
Closing Balance as af 31 March 2022 220,733

The Expectad Credit Losses default rate for Council trode debl has been increased by o lactor ol 0.47 {2020/21 1.31) due to the
changing ecanamic condiions as a result of the Carona Virus. The lactor fokes account of prediclians by thiee leading cradit rating
agencies.

There s no histerical experence of dalaull in relation to deposits with banks and other financial institulions. The Councll manages cradit
fisk by ersuring that invesiments are only placed with arganiations of high credil quality ot set out in the Trecsury Management Strotegy.

Liquldity Risk
The Councll manages ils iguidity positien thiough 1he fitk manogement processes set oul in its annuol Tregsury Management Strategy
and Prodential indicators, os well as through the active monogement of the cosh fiow position. This seeks 1o ensure that cosh s available
when it s needed.

As the Council hos ready cccass 1o borowing from the Public Works Loans Board, there is ne significant risk that it will be unable 1o raise
finonce to meet its commitments under Financial Instrumeants, The moturity analysis of linancial iabilifies s included ot Note |7 ond other
payables are due ler paymenl within one year,

Market Risk: Inferest Rates

The Council is expesed to risk in 1erms of ils exposura to interest rale mavements on ifs borowings ond investmants. The Councilis in
reaeipt of loons from the Department of Finance however these loans are of lxed concessionary interest rates Ihat dilfer from the

prevaling markef rales.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Council has no financial assets or iobilies denominated in loreign currencies other than a bank account denominaled in Ewo, This
pecount is used salely to fociitole 1he CANN Project (Collaborative Action for the Notura Netwerk), The Council does not consider this o
matenal exposure to loss orsing from movamaenis in exchonge rates.

1p2



Agenda 9.0/9 DDC Statement of Account 2021-22 - post audit.pdf

P Parficipafion in the Morthern Ireland Lecal Govemment Officers’ Pension Fund.
As part of the terrms and conditions of employment of its olficers ond other employees, the Council alfers relirement benefils, Although

these benelits will not actually be payable untl employess retire, the Council hos g commitment to make the payments that need to be
disciosed at the time thot empleyaes aarn their future enfitiemnent.

The Council participoies In The Mariharn Ireland Local Govemment Officers’ Pension Fund odministered by the Nerlhern freland Local
Govemnment Officers’ Supearannuation Commitlee, Thisis o funded scheme, meaning that the Council and employees poy confributions
inta a lund, calcuated at o level infended lo balance the pension's ighdifias with investmen! gssels.

b TransocHons reloling to retirement benefits - Comprehensive income and Expendifure Statement Charges:

The Councl recognises the cost of refirement benefits in the Cost of Services on Continuing Operalions when they ore eamed by
employees, ralher than when the baenelits ore eventucily poid os pensions.

However, the chorge the Coundil is required fo moke agoinst district rates b based on the cosh poyable in the year, and the real cost of
retirernent benalits & reversed out in the odjustments between accounfing basis & lunding basis under regulations fine. in the mMovement

on Reserves Slotemant.

The follawing fransaclions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stafement and the odjusiments between
eccounting basis & lunding basis under reguialions line, in the Movement on Resarves Staleman during the yeor,

Nel cost of services:

Curren! service cost
Pasi service cost/igain)
Gains ond losses on setllameants or curtailments

Mel aperaling expenditura:
Net Interest on nel defined benalit Liobiity {asset]

13.141.000 2.484.000
58,000

1,405,000 1,181,000

Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the Surplus or Deflch on the Provision

of Services 14,545,000 10,721,000

Movemeant in Reserves Slaterment:

Reversal of net chorges mode for retirement benelits in occordance with IAS 19
and the Code

Actual emount charged against the general fund bolonce lor pentons in the
bacit

[ 14,546,000 (10,721.000)

5,004,000 4576000

Employers’ confrioutions payable toscheme

Hel qdjlusrmonr to General Fund
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The senvice cost figures include an allowance for adminisination expenses of £124k.

Eemeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

and Expendilure 2021/22

£
Liobilty goins/[losses| due to chenge in assurnpfions 18.591.000 [48.043,000}
Liabikty gains/[iosses) due to due to demogrophic changes 2,718,000 -
Liabilily expenance gains/{losses) arising in the yeor {633,000} 1,987,000
Actuarigl gains/[losses) on plon ossels 3.573.000 36,244,000
Oiher

ive Income and Expendifure 24449000

L= Acsefs and labilities in relalion to relirement benefits
Reconcilialion of present value el the scheme licbilifies: MNote

2020/ 21
£

Balance as at | Agril 273,994,000 215,247,000
Currenl service cot! 13,141,000 9,484,000
Intares! oot 57219000 4,952,000
Confributions by members 1,623,000 1,401,000
Remeasuremen! [gains] ond losses;
Actusrial gainsfiosses arising from changes in fnancial ogumptions 118,551,000 48,043,000
Aclucniol going/icsses ariging Irom demographic chanpes {2.718.000) 7
Aclucriol goinsfiosses arlsing on fiabilities from experdence £33.000 [1.587,000)
Other (it appicobie) - -
Fast service cosls/(gains) 56,000
Lesses/lgains] on curlailmeants -
Liobiifies extinguished on seflements : -
Estimated unfunded benalits pakd [72,000) {78,000}
Estimated benefits poid 15.047.000) (5,022,000}

Bolance as at 31 March 268,675,000

Reconcilialion of present value of the scheme assels: Nole

273,795,000

2020421
£

Balonce as at | Aprl 163,140,000
Interest Income 3,771,000
Coentributions by members 1,501,000
Cantributions by employer 4,898,000
Contibutions in respect ol unfunded benelits 78.000
Remegsurement gain/ (loss) 3,248,000
Assefls distributed on selllemenis . -

Unfungded banalils poia [7%.000) {78.0001
Benelits poid [5.04%.000) 15,022,000

Baolance as al 31 March 214,420,000

204,434,000

The expacied relurn on scheme ossefs is delermined by considering the expected retums available on the assets underying the curent
investment policy. Expected yields an fixed inlerest investments ore based an gross redemphion yields os of the Bolance Sheet dale.

Expected refurns on equily investments refiect long-term real rales of relum expenenced in the respective markets,

The eclhyal refum on scheme assels in the yeor was a gain of £8.3m (2080021 gain of £40m].

Fair Value of Plan Assels 2021/22

£
Equily investments 87.084,520 94,745,542
Bonds 83,194,940 73054338
Property 23,371,780 18,212,426
Cash 13,294 040 10,845,602
Other 7.504.700 7776002

214,420,000
The above assel vaiues ore of bid value os required by 1AS 19,
Details of estimates mode by the Fund Manager when gssessing the lair values of plan ossels

The amounis inciuded in {he loir volue of plan assets for property occupied by the Council was ENil,
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The Council's share of ihe Nel Pension Liabllity (Included in ihe Balance Sheet):

Met Assel/{ Liability)

| Scheme History
Analysis of scheme ossefs and liabilities

Fair Value ol Assels in pension scheme

(54,255.000)

214,420,000

Far Volue of Employer Assels 214,420,000 204,634,000
Present value ol lunded defined benellt obligotion [247,679.000] (272,911,000
Pansion csset/(liability] of Funded Scheme 153,279.000] [48.277.000)
Fresent Value ol unfunded defined benelit oblipation |974.0001 11.085,000]
Other movemant in the llobility (assel) (il opplicoble] E
Net assel/(liabllity) arising from the defined benefit fi 154.255.0001 [69.3462,000)
Amouni in the Bolance sheet:

Licbilities [248.5675.000) {273,996,000)
Assets 214,420,000 204,634,000

(49,342 000)

2020/21
£
204,634,000

Prasent Volue of Defined Benefit Obligofion

[268.675.000]

{273,995,000)

Surplus/{deficit) in the Scheme

Amount recognised in Other Compeehensive Income and

Expendilure;

(54,255,000}

2021722
£

(67.382,000)

2020421

g

Actugrial gains/(losses) 20,676,000 [46,055,000)
Expected Retum on Flon Assets 3573000 36,244,000
Increase/{decregse) in itecoverable surplus from membership foll and ofher

lactons - -
Remeosuremants recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 24.54% 000 [7.810.000)
Cumilative ocluonal gains and losses 9.244000 {15.405,000)
Histery of experlence galns ond losses:

Experience goins and [lowses) on assels . -
Expenence gains and (losses] on fapiihes 533,000 {1,787 000)

The linbiities show the undarlying commilmenis that the autherity has In The long run to pay refirerment benelits. The lotal lkabliity of

£26%m has a substantiol impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet, resulting in a net liotdity of £54.3m.

However, statutary arangements for funding the daficil meaan that the finoncial position of ihe Councll remains healthy. The de ficit on
e Nardhem lreland Locagl Govermmen! Officers’ Fersion Fund will be made good by increased contriibutians ovar the remaining working

Iife of employees, assessed by the scheme acluary.

sis of projecied amount fo be chaiged io the C

wehentlve Income and Expenditure Statement lor the year te 31 Marc

Projected cureni cost 12,281,000 878%
Mel inleres! an the nat delined beneli! koblily [oue!) 1.394.000 10.2%
Past service cos 0.0%
Gains and losses on seltlements or curfailmenis 0.0%

The telal contributions expecisd o be mada to the Norhemn reland Local Governmaent Officen’ Pension Fund by the council In the year
1o 31 Morch 2023 is £5.2m.

History ol experence gains and losses

The actuaniol goinsflosses identified os movements on the Pensions Reserve 2021/22 can be analysed info ihe loliowing cotegornies,
meoswred as o percenfage of assats or lablifies at 31 March 2021,

Expanionce |Gains and (losses] on Assels
|Exparience goins ond [losses) on Liobilifies |
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estimaling assels and liabililies

ies have been osessed on on actuarial basis usng Ihe projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in

the fulure years dependent on assumptions oboul morfality rates, salory levels, etc. The Councll's Fund liobiities hove been assassad by
Aan Hewitt Limited, an independant fim of actuarsies, eslimaotes for the Council Fund being bosed on doto perfoining to the lafest full

valuafion of the scheme as at 31 March 2022,

ssumphicns:

40.6%

Equity invesiments 46.3%
Beonds 36.5% I5TR
Proparty 10.5%, 895
Cash &2% 5.3%
Other 35% 38%
Morlality assumplions:

Longevily at 65 curent pensioners: Yaar Yeors

Man 218 21.%
‘Wornen 25.0 25.1
Longevity al &5 for fulure pensioners:

men 23.2 233
Women 26.4 26.5
inflation/Pension Increose Rote 3.00% 2.70%
Salary Increase Rote A4.50% 4.20%
Expected Ratum on Assefs 0.00% 0.00%
Dscoun! Rate 2.70% 2.10%
Pension occounts revaluglion rale 3.00% 2.70%

Fension Assumption nsifivity Analysis

The pension figures disclosed in these financial statements are sensitive o the ossumplions used.

The approxdmate impoct of changing key assumptions on the present vaiue of the funded defined benelit obligation as ot 31 March

2022 Is sel out below.

in each cose, only the assumption noled below is altered; ol other assumptions remain the same and are summaised in Ihe disclosure

above.

funded Pension Scheme Banafits

Di I Rote Assumplion

Adpstment fo discount rate +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.a.

Present volue of the fotol obligation 262613000 272,785000
% change in the present value of the folal cbligalion -1.90% 1.90%
Projected service cosl 11,876,000 12,699,000
Approximale % change in projecied sarvice cosl -3.30% 31.40%
Rate of General Increase in Salaries

Adisiment 1o salary increase rate +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.a.

Presant volue of fhe fotol obligation 268,770,000 266,628,000
% change in the present value of the lolal obilgation 0.40% -0.40%
Projecled service cosl 12,281.000 12.281.000
Approdmala % change in projacted sarvice cost 0.00% 0.00%|
Rate of increase to Pensiens In Payment and Deferred Pension Assumplion

Adjustment o pension increase rale +0.1%p.a. 0.1%p.a.

Presant value of ihe tolal obligation 271,714,000 263684000
% change in the present value of the total obligation 1.50% -1.50%
Projected service cost 12.699.000 11,876,000
Approximate % chonge in projecied senvice cost 3.40%] -3.30%
Post Rellrement Mortality Assumptian

Adjustment 1o mortalily age roling essumplion® - 1 Year #1 Year

Fresent volue of the lolal obligation 277,068,000 258,330,000
% chonge in the present value of the fotal obligation 1.50% -3.50%)
Projected senvice cost 12.772.000 11,832,000 |
Approximate % chongs in projected service cost 4.00% -3.90%

* A rafing of +1 year means that members are assumed o follow 1he mertality pattem of the base table cbove for an indvidual that is |

year alder han that.



[} Major calegories of plan assels as percenlage of folal plan assels

The Nerthemn irsfand Local Govemment Officers” Pension Fund's ossefs consist of the tollowing calegories, by proportion of the total
assets held:

Equily investmants 40,607 46.30%
Govemment Bonds 24.10% 23.40%
Corporale Bonds 14.70% 12 10%]
Property 10.70% B90%
Cash &.20% 530%
Other 3.50% B0
Tatal 100.00% 100.00%

-] Norlhern [reland Civil Service Pension Arrangements

The Nerthern kelond Civil Service Persion arangaments are unfunded mulli-amployer defined benefil schemes but the Councll &
unable to identily its share of the underlying ossefs and liobilities. The mest up to dote actuarial voluation was caned out as ol
31/03/201 9, This valualion is then reviewed by the Schame Acluary ond updoled 1o reflect cument condilions and rolied forward 1o the
reporting date of the DoF Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource Accounts as af 31 March 2022,

Guoranteed Minimum Pension [GMP) is a portion of pension that was accrued by individugls who were confracied out of the stale
pension prior fa & Apfil 1997, At present {here is an inequality of benelils behween male and lemole members who have GMP. Allnough
the Govemment intends that GMP should be equalised, at present it s no! clear how 1his equolsation will be Implemented. In July 2014
the Govemnmaent staled an intenfion to develop fully considered proposals and fo publish guidance when Ths work i completed, bul ng
targel date was given. The impact of ony liagilities relating te the Council is therefore uncertain and no provision has been made in
thase financial statements,

by 3 Donaled Assets Account

The balance of the Donated Asets Account represents donafions received that have yet fo be recognised ot income, as they have
conditions atinched to them, which will require the donoted assels to be returned, if conditions ore not mel, Duing the year the Council
had ne Donaled Asets and the balance an the Donated Assals Accoun! was EMI of 315t March 2022 (317372021 £Mil).

i~ 3 Capital Gronls Recelved in Advance

The Councll hos no copital granis received in advance.

24

a
The Arc 21 Joint Commiltee hos with the oporaval of thek parficipant Councls, entered into o Confingent Licbility underiaking with the
bidding eonsortium in the procuremeni for the Residuol Waste Trectment Project and Mewry, Moumne and Down District Coundl has
agreed the legocy Down Distict Councils shore of fhe confingent liabdity. Payments made if any In accordance with his undertaking
will ba funded by the pordicipaling Councis. No further informafion on this agreement can be disclosed due lo the comimeicial
sensitivity of the procurement process. In oddition to the above, The Council is one of the parfies o the successiul legal action (October
2020], loken ogainst HMRC, that charges paid since 2006 by members of fhe public lor occess 1o sports, recreation and lsisure fociliies
provided by NI Councils were outside fhe scope of Ihe VAT regime and that the VAT should be repaid. The Council understonds fhat
HMRC hos appealed the judgemenl, the outcome of which will e reported to the Councll in due coursa,

The Council is ane of the parfies in the successiul legal acfion [Octaber 2020), foken against HMRLC, thol chorges paid since 2006 by
members of the putiic for access 1o sports, recrealion and leisure faciities provided by Ml Counclls were outside the scope of tha VAT
regime cnd thal the VAT should be repaid. The Council understands that HMREC is comsidering the implications of the judgement and the
outcome of which will be reported to the Council in due course, An assel i nol included within the Staterment ol Accounts, as the
amaount of the gsset conno! be deemed vidually cerlain,
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

LI Other cash flow disclosures
Fe| Analysis of Adjustments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

Adjustment to surplus or deficif on the provision of services

far nencash movements Notes 2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Depreciation 11 7,103,252 7,149,995
Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale
derecognitions) 11 {1,150,260) (271,583)
Amorfisafion (included with depreciation above) = -
(Increase}/Decrease in inventories [67,495] 40,899
(Increase) /Decrease in Debiors (5.082,974) (1.554,745)
Increase/(decrease] In impairmeni provision for bad debls (101,448) (80,330)
Increase/[Decrease] in Creditors 6,837,545 2,488,914
Increase/[Decrease] in Inferest Creditors - -
Payments to NILGOSC 20 9,542,000 5,745,000
Carrying amount of non-current assels sold 8 635,558 2,790,271
AUC/WIP writlen off to Nef Cosl of Services 11 - 59,153
Conlinbulions o Other Reserves/Provisions 1,733,808 167,719
Movement in value of investment properties-included
above in Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale
derecognitions) (380,000) (30.000)
Amounts posted to CIES from Donated Assets Account 21 .

19,067,966 14,505,093

Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the
provision of services that are investing and financing

2021/22 2020/21

Purchase of snort-term (not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes
investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries) -
Proceeds from short-term [not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes
investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries)
Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property and
intangible assets (777.350) (1.247,360)

Capital grants included in ‘Taxation & nen-specific grant
income” (4,237,051) (6,705,499)

(5,014,401 (7.972.859)
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s Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in bank and short
term deposits and investments [considered to be cash equivalents], net of oulstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and
cash equivalents at the end of the reporling period as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the

related iterns in the Balance Sheet as follows:

|3

2021/22 2020/21 2019/20
£ £ £
Cash and Bonk balances 3.533.681 2,918,093 87,305
Short Term Deposits [considered 1o be Cash Equivalents) 21,011,531 13,306,288 779,891
Short Term Investments (considered to be Cash Equivalents) . - -
Bank Overdraft {8.679) [766.961)
24,536,533 14,224,381 100,235
4 Cash Flow Statement: Operating Activities 2021/22 2020/21
The cash flows from operating activities include: £ L
Interest received (9.864) [5,276)
Interest paid 2,059,281 2,243,888
2,049,415 2,238,612
Cash flows from Investing Activities 2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Purchase of PPAE, investrment property and intangible assets [5,123,544) (4,709,551}
Purchase of Short Term Invesiments (not considered to be
cash equivalents)
Purchase of Long Term Investments
Other Fayments for Investing Activities
Proceeds from fhe sale of PP&E, investment property and
intangible assets 777,350 1,267,360
Proceeds from Shaort Term Investments (not considered to be
cash equivalents)
Proceeds from Long Term Invesiments - -
Capital Grants and Contributions Received 4,672,615 5,858,877
Other Receipts from Investing Activities - .
Net Cash flows from Investing Activities 326,421 2,416,684
I Cash llows from Financing Activities 2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Cosh Receipts from Short and Long Term Borrowing 4,000,000
Other Receipts from Financing Activities -
Cuash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liability relating to a lease and
on-Balance Sheet PFl contracts - (4,172}
Repayment of Short and Leng Term Borrowing (4,416,318} 4.716,520)
Other payments for Financing Activities g =

Net Cash flows from Financing Activities

(4.416,318)

(720.692)
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c

Usable Reserves
Capital Receipts Reserve

These are capital receipts which have originated primarily from the sale of assets which have not yet been used 1o
finance capital expenditure.

The Capifal Receipls Reserve is credited with the proceeds from fixed asset sales and other monies defined by
statute as capital receipts. These are originally credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as
part of the gainfloss on disposal and posted out via the Movement in Reserves Stalement to the Capital Receipls
Reserve. The reserve is written down when resources are applied to finance new capital expenditure or set aside to
reduce an autherily's capital financing requirerment (or used for olher purposes permitted by statute),

Capital Receipts Reserve Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
£ £

At 1 April E

Movement

Disposal of Non-Current Assets/Capital Sales 777,350 1,267,360

Capital Receipis used to finance capital expenditure 31! (777.250) (1.267.360)

Capital Fund

This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act [NI) 1972, however this section of the act
was repealed under the Local Government Finance Act (Nothem Ireland) 2011.

31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Capital Fund

£ &
At 1 April 627,613
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General
Fund 15,000,000 (627,613)
At 31 March 15,000,000 -
Other Balances & Reserves Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
£ £
At 1 Apil 8,902,362 120,000
Transfers between statulory & other reserves & the General 4 808,275 8,782,362
Transters between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund & 12 (216.572) .
At 31 March 7,494,065 8,902,342

(i). Election Reserve - this reserve is used to equalise (smooth) the cost of elections by building up a fund to cover the
cosls of fufure elections by making confribulions, as and when required, to the reserve. The balance at 31/3/22 is
£400,000 (31/3/21 £209,500).

i), Covid Funding Reserve - the Depariment for Communities allocated funding to Councils to alleviate the impact
of exceplional losses and costs incurred or estimated fo be incurred as a conseguence of Covid-19. This reserve was
created to ring-fence the unspent funding. The balance at 31/3/22 is £1,753.397 (31/3/21 £2.4579,033).

{iii). Covid Support Grants Reserve - the Department for Communifies issued a range of Covid support grants during
the year ended 315t March 2021 for Revitalisation and during the fwo years ended 31sl March 2022 for Community
Support. This reserve was created to ring-fence the unspent funding. The balance at 31/3/22 is £163,574 (31/3/22
£2,233,829),

{iv). Covid Revitalisation Reserve - this reserve has been created fo assist with the revitalisation of the District post-
Covid. The balance at 31/3/22 s £1.412,091 {31/3/21 £1,750,000).

{v). Economic Recovery Reserve - this reserve has been crecated to assist with the economic recovery of the District
post-Covid. The balance at 31/3/22 is £2,250,000 (31/3/21 £2,250,000).

{vil. Covid Recovery Small Setflemenis Regeneration Reserve - the Department for Communities issued funding
lowords the Councils Covid Recovery Small Settlements Regeneration Programme in March 2022. The balance at

31/3/221s £3,515,000.
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